
1 

CITY OF DELAWARE 
CITY COUNCIL 

MEETING TO BE HELD VIRTUALLY VIA CISCO Webex ** 
7:00 P.M. MEETING 

AGENDA 

7:00 P.M. March 23, 2020 

1. ROLL CALL

2. INVOCATION

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

4. APPROVAL of the Motion Summary of the regular meeting of Council
held on March 9, 2020, as recorded and transcribed.
APPROVAL of the Motion Summary of the work session meeting of
Council held on March 2, 2020, as recorded and transcribed.

5. CONSENT AGENDA
A. Resolution No. 20-26, a resolution accepting the recommendations 

of the Delaware City Tax Incentive Review Council (TIRC) on the 
status of the 2019 Community Reinvestment Area (CRA), 
Enterprise Zone (EZ) and Tax Increment Financing Programs (TIF). 

B. Resolution No. 20-27, a resolution authorizing the City Manager to 
enter into a Mutual Aid Agreement with member departments.  

C. Resolution No. 20-28, a resolution authorizing the City Manager to 
enter into an agreement with the Ohio Department of 
Transportation to participate in the cooperative purchase of road 
salt through the ODOT Winter Salt Purchase Contract (018-21).   

D. Resolution No. 20-29, a resolution authorizing cancellation of the 
April City Council Meetings. 

6. LETTERS, PETITIONS, AND PUBLIC COMMENTS
Due to the meeting being held virtually, public comment will be received 
through email at emccloskey@delawareohio.net prior to the meeting or 
through City Facebook Messenger while the meeting is streamed live. The 
public will have the opportunity to provide a phone number to be 
conferenced into the remote meeting.

7. COMMITTEE REPORTS

mailto:emccloskey@delawareohio.net


2 
 

8. CONSIDERATION OF A NEW LIQUOR PERMIT 
A. Meijer Stores Limited Partnership DBA Meijer Gas Station 249, 

1138 Sunbury Road, Delaware, Ohio 43015.  Permit Class C2 
 

9. 7:30 P.M. PUBLIC HEARING AND SECOND READING of Ordinance No. 
20-10, an ordinance approving a Rezoning Amendment for Terra Alta 
LLC., for Terra Alta Subdivision from A-1 and R-2 PMU to A-1 and R-2 
PMU on approximately 472.9 acres and located north of Braumiller 
Road, east of Pollock Road and west of Berlin Station Road (No zoning 
changes to the Stockdale Farms portion of the development). 
 

10. 7:30 P.M. PUBLIC HEARING AND SECOND READING of Ordinance No. 
20-11, an ordinance approving a Conditional Use Permit for Terra Alta 
LLC., allowing the placement of a Planned Mixed-Use Overlay District 
(PMU) for Terra Alta Subdivision on approximately 472.9 acres zoned A-1 
and R-2 PMU and located north of Braumiller Road, east of Pollock Road 
and west of Berlin Station Road.  
 

11. SECOND READING of Ordinance No. 20-12, an ordinance approving an 
Amended Preliminary Development Plan for Terra Alta LLC., for Terra 
Alta Subdivision on approximately 472.9 acres on property zoned A-1 
and R-2 PMU and located north of Braumiller Road, east of Pollock Road 
and west of Berlin Station Road.  
 

12. SECOND READING of Ordinance No. 20-13, an ordinance approving an 
Amended Subdivision Plat for Terra Alta LLC., For Terra Alta Subdivision 
on approximately 472.9 acres on property zoned A-1 and R-2 PMU and 
located north of Braumiller Road, east of Pollock Road and west of Berlin 
Station Road.  
 

13. SECOND READING of Ordinance No. 20-14, an ordinance approving a 
Combined Preliminary and Final Development Plan for Skilken Gold Real 
Estate Development for Sheetz located at 700 Sunbury Road on property 
zoned B-3 (Community Business District) and B-4 (General Business 
District) on approximately 4.6 acres.  
 

14. SECOND READING of Ordinance No. 20-21, an ordinance supplementing 
the 2020 Appropriations Ordinance to provide additional funding for the 
Housing Program Income Fund.  
 

15. SECOND READING of Ordinance No. 20-22, an ordinance supplementing 
the 2020 Appropriations Ordinance to provide additional funding for the 
East William Street Project and declaring an emergency.  
 

16. SECOND READING of Ordinance No. 20-23, an ordinance supplementing 



3 
 

the 2020 Appropriations Ordinance to provide additional funding for 
water main extensions associated with the Glenn Parkway Project.  
 

17. SECOND READING of Ordinance No. 20-24, an ordinance supplementing 
the 2020 Appropriations Ordinance to provide additional funding for 
Parkland and Trailway Development Improvements.  
 

18. FINANCE DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
 

19. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

20. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 

21. ADJOURNMENT 
 

 
** This meeting will be a virtual meeting.  Residents are encouraged to view 
online through the City of Delaware Facebook page.   
 
To comply with the CDC recommendation prohibiting group meetings, no in 
person attendance by Council, staff, or the public will be available.  
 
 
 

























  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  CONSENT ITEM A DATE: 03/23/2020 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 20-26 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Sean Hughes, Economic Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE DELAWARE CITY 
TAX INCENTIVE REVIEW COUNCIL (TIRC) ON THE STATUS OF THE 2019 
COMMUNITY REINVESTMENT AREA (CRA), ENTERPRISE ZONE (EZ) AND TAX 
INCREMENT FINANCING PROGRAMS (TIF). 
 
BACKGROUND: 
City of Delaware is required, under Ohio Revised Code Sections 3735.69 and 5709.68 
to submit an annual report regarding the status of each Agreement by March 31, to the 
Director of the Ohio Development Services Agency. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
In order to maintain and continue commercial and residential tax 
exemptions/abatements (Enterprise Zone, Community Reinvestment Area and Tax 
Increment Financing Agreements), authorized per the Ohio Revised Code and City 
Resolutions and Ordinances, the City of Delaware legislative authority must appoint a 
Tax Incentive Review Council (TIRC).  The TIRC annually reviews and makes 
recommendations to City Council to Continue, Modify or Terminate each tax abatement 
agreement.  City Council’s decisions to accept or change the TIRC’s recommendations 
are annually reported to the Ohio Department of Development no later than March 31.   
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Tax Incentive Review Council, 2/25/19 
VOTE: Approval  



All agreements were in compliance or within their 3-year grace periods. Please 
see attached Minutes. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
COST: N/A 
FUND SOURCES: N/A 
BUDGETED: NO 
 
DEPARTMENTS IMPACTED: Economic Development 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Sean Hughes, Economic Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
2020 TIRC Minutes 
2020 CRA Abatements Status Report Summary Spreadsheet 
2020 Performance Based Economic Incentive Grant Summary Spreadsheet 
2020 TIFs Status Report Summary Spreadsheet 
2020 Residential CRA Abatements Status Report Summary Spreadsheet 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 20-27 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE 
RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE CITY OF DELAWARE 
TAX INCENTIVE REVIEW COUNCIL (TIRC) ON THE 
STATUS OF THE 2019 COMMUNITY REINVESTMENT 
AREA (CRA), ENTERPRISE ZONE (EZ), AND TAX 
INCREMENT FINANCING (TIF) PROGRAMS. 
 

WHEREAS, the purpose of the Delaware City CRA, EZ and TIF Programs 
is to provide the community with an effective tool for managing and guiding 
economic development by enhancing the tax base, by encouraging and 
sustaining long term investment in the community, by enhancing the quality of 
life, and by preserving existing and attracting new business investment within 
said Programs; and 

WHEREAS, the duly appointed Delaware City Tax Incentive Review 
Council (TIRC) met on February 25, 2020, and reviewed the status of each active 
agreement and made certain recommendations concerning action to either 
continue, modify, terminate or expire said agreements; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Delaware is required, under Ohio Revised Code 
Sections 3735.69 and 5709.68 to submit an annual report regarding the status 
of each Agreement by March 31, to the Director of the Ohio Development Services 
Agency. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of 
Delaware as follows: 

SECTION 1:  That the review and recommendations made by the TIRC in 
the Meeting Minutes on this Resolution’s Fact Sheet and the Fact Sheet 
Attachments “2020 Tax Incentive Review Council Summary Tax Year 2019,”  
“2020 Tax Incentive Review Council Tax Year 2019 City of Delaware TIF Zones” 
and the "2020 Residential CRA Status Report Tax Year 2019" be accepted and 
that these reports, and all other information required by the State of Ohio be 
accepted by the Council of the  City of Delaware and be forwarded to the Director 
of the Ohio Development Services Agency, and all other appropriate entities, as 
noted in ORC Sections 3735.69 and 5709.68. 

SECTION 2: That this Resolution shall take effect and be in force 
immediately after its passage. 



PASSED: ____________________________, 2020  YEAS _____ NAYS _____ 

        ABSTAIN _____ 

 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 

 



  

 
 

 
CITY OF DELAWARE TAX INCENTIVE REVIEW COUNCIL (TIRC) MINUTES 

 
Tuesday, February 25, 2020 

3 p.m. 
City Hall- CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

 
 

1. Call to Order  

Honorable George Kaitsa called to order the 2020 TIRC at 3:04 P.M.   

2. Roll Call 

Members Present: Honorable George Kaitsa, Mayor Carolyn Kay Riggle, Tom Homan, Emily Hatfield, 

Chris Bell, Melissa Swearingen, Justin Navhi, and Tim Wells  

Staff Present: Sean Hughes, Shari Baker from County Auditor’s Office 

George Anasis, Sky Climber; Todd King, Sky Climber 

3. Consent Agenda: 2019 CRA/EZ Tax Abatement Reports 

Mr. Hughes explained that 14 CRA/EZ agreements (Symmetry I, V&P Hydraulics, Sky Climber, 

AHP/Domtar, NABI/NFI, American Freight, Henkel, Optimum Platics/Charter NEX, Engineered 

Materials Systems (2015), Midwest Acoust-A-Fiber (2016), Midwest Acoust-A-Fiber (2018), 

Symmetry II, COhatch, Kirby Ventures LLC and Oak & Brazen) were in compliance with their payroll 

goals and new and retained full time employee (FTE) goals. Ms. Swearingen made a motion to 

recommend COMPLIANCE on the consent agenda abatement agreements to the City Council, 

seconded by Ms. Hatfield and approved by an 8-0 vote. Mr. Homan made a motion to recommend 

CONTINUATION on the consent agenda abatement agreements to the City Council, seconded by Mr. 

Wells and approved by an 8-0 vote.  

4. Consideration Agenda: 2nd Half Ventures CRA - 

Mr. Hughes explained that 2nd Half Ventures (SmOHked) met their 9 FTE commitment with 10 new 



 

FTEs. However, they did not meet the $350,000 payroll goal with the creation of $148,000 in payroll. 

He explained that this was more than likely due to the fact they were not in business for the entire 

year.  They are in the 1st year of  their 3-year grace period for commitments, so Hughes 

recommended to the TIRC to find them out of Compliance, but to Continue their abatement. Mr. Bell 

made a motion for recommending NON-COMPLIANCE and was seconded by Mayor Riggle. The 

motion was approved by an 8-0 vote. Ms. Swearingen made a motion for recommending 

CONTINUATION on the 2nd Half Ventures CRA to the City Council, seconded by Ms. Hatfield and 

approved by an 8-0 vote. 

5. Consideration Agenda: Engineered Materials Systems 2018 Expansion CRA -  

Mr. Hughes explained that Engineered Materials Systems was short of their new FTE goal of 8 with 2 

new FTEs and that they were short of their $700,000 new payroll goal with $580,000 in new payroll. 

However, they are in the 1st year of their 3-year grace period for commitments. Mr. Wells made a 

motion for recommending NON-COMPLIANCE and was seconded by Ms. Hatfield. The motion was 

approved by an 8-0 vote. Ms. Swearingen made a motion for recommending CONTINUATION on the 

Engineered Materials Systems 2018 CRA to the City Council, seconded by Mr. Wells and approved by 

an 8-0 vote. 

6. Consideration Agenda: Sky Climber Fabricating (formerly Precision Tower Products) CRA –  

Mr. Hughes explained that Sky Climber Fabricating ceased operations as of August of 2018., however, 

Sky Climber Fabricating still owns the building and the land. Parent company Sky Climber utilizes the 

building for manufacturing. However, Sky Climber has only been able to hire 23 of the 35 committed 

FTEs and $1,785,281 in payroll (committed to $1,970,000). Owners George Anasis and Todd King of 

Sky Climber spoke about their troubles with finding adequate staffing and their plans to move more 

manufacturing to the Sky Climber Fabricating building from Sky Climber. Because they are in the last 

year of their 3-year grace period by state law, Hughes recommended NON-COMPLIANCE and 

CONTINUATION on the Sky Climber Fabricating CRA to the TIRC. Mr. Bell motioned for 

recommending NONCOMPLIANCE with a second from Mayor Riggle. The motion passed 8-0. Mr. 



 

 

Homan motioned to recommend CONTINUATION to City Council with a second from Mr. Wells. The 

motion was approved by an 8-0 vote. 

7. Consideration Agenda:  KB42 LTD CRA - 

Mr. Hughes explained that KB42 LTD fell short of their FTE and payroll commitment of 10 FTEs and 

$600,000 in payroll with 9 FTEs and $550,000 in payroll. KB42 LTD is in the second year of their 3-

year grace period by state law. Ms. Hatfield motioned for a recommendation of NON-COMPLIANCE 

with a second from Mr. Bell. The motion passed 8-0. Ms. Swearingen made a motion to recommend 

CONTINUATION with a second from Mr. Wells. The motion passed 8-0. 

8. Tax Increment Finance Districts (TIF) 

Mr. Hughes reported that 10 active TIF agreements are in compliance by having had their respective 

payments in lieu of taxes on real property paid, distributed to the City to be deposited to the 

appropriate districts. Staff recommended COMPLIANCE and CONTINUATION. Mr. Bell made a motion 

to recommend COMPLIANCE with a second from Mayor Riggle. The motion passed 8-0. Ms. 

Swearingen made a motion to recommend CONTINUATION, seconded by Mr. Nahvi and approved by 

an 8-0 vote.  

9. Residential CRA Agreements 

Mr. Hughes reported that all 33 Residential CRA agreements are active and in COMPLIANCE 

(residential improvements had been made and remaining non-abated taxes were up to date). Mr. 

Nahvi made a motion to recommend COMPLIANCE with a second from Mr. Bell. The motion passed 8-

0. Ms. Hatfield made a motion to recommend CONTINUATION of all Residential CRA agreements with 

a second from Ms. Swearingen. The motion passed 8-0. 

10.  School Pilot Programs 

Mr. Hughes discussed that all current school pilot payments were up to date and that he would be 

working with both the School Treasurers to issue 2020 invoices. 

 

Adjournment  

Mr. Wells motioned for adjournment. Meeting was adjourned at 4:02 P.M.  



2020 Tax Incentive Review Council Summary
Tax Year 2019

2018  TIRC Summary Job & Payroll Creation                                    Real & Personal Property Investment

CRA Company Years/Abatement % Year of 
Expiration

Total Payroll Goal Retained Payroll 
Goal

New Payroll Goal Current Total Payroll Current Retained Payroll Current New Payroll % Achieved FTE Goal Retained FTE Goal New FTE 
Goal

Current 
Total FTE

Current 
Retained FTE

Current New 
FTE

% Achieved Parcel # Taxes Paid in 2019 Total Taxes Paid 
thru Last Report

Total Taxes Paid Thru 
12/31/2019  
(Cumulative)

Taxes Forgone in 
2019

Total Taxes 
Forgone Thru Last 

Report

Total Taxes 
Forgone Thru 
12/31/2019  
(Cumulative)

CRA 17-002 2nd Half Ventures 15/100% 12/31/2033 $350,000.00 $0.00 $350,000.00 $202,000.00 $0.00 $202,000.00 58% 9 0 9 0 0 10 111% 51943225022000 $604.30 $0.00 $604.30 $3,701.31 $0.00 $3,701.31
CRA 04-004 Symmetry One 15/100% 12/31/2020 $450,000.00 $0.00 $450,000.00 $1,283,872.00 $0.00 $1,283,872.00 285% 15 0 15 22 0 22 147% Multiple $22,099.44 $59,077.62 $81,177.06 $57,680.48 $689,010.70 $746,691.18
CRA 06-001 V&P Hydraulics 15/50% 12/31/2022 $2,300,000.00 $0.00 $2,300,000.00 $3,440,779.93 $0.00 $3,440,779.93 150% 65 0 65 75 0 75 115% 41922001006003 $30,565.14 $211,631.41 $242,196.55 $24,077.42 $171,019.96 $195,097.38
CRA 06-002 Sky Climber 15/50% 12/31/2022 $2,000,000.00 $0.00 $2,000,000.00 $3,982,691.00 $0.00 $3,982,691.00 199% 45 0 45 58 0 58 129% 41922001006002 $30,885.00 $295,865.38 $326,750.38 $24,590.00 $224,574.37 $249,164.37

CRA 06-003
Associated Hygienic 
Products 15/75% 12/31/2022 $7,480,879.00 $0.00 $7,480,879.00 $11,992,823.00 $0.00 $11,992,823.00 160% 201 0 201 271 0 271 135% 41922002001000 $117,717.00 $1,215,184.57 $1,332,901.57 $356,817.00 $2,978,001.41 $3,334,818.41

CRA 07-001 NABI Parts Division 15/50% 12/31/2023 $2,000,000.00 $0.00 $2,000,000.00 $4,416,426.00 $0.00 $4,416,426.00 221% 45 0 45 78 0 78 173% 41922002001001 $11,855.72 $705,253.41 $717,109.13 $99,224.23 $200,146.79 $299,371.02
CRA 10-001 American Freight 10/50% 12/31/2021 $2,120,000.00 $1,870,000.00 $250,000.00 $8,086,040.17 $1,870,000.00 $6,216,040.17 381% 35 30 5 74 30 44 211% 51944403010000 $27,612.46 $182,061.18 $209,673.64 $5,800.00 $38,880.41 $44,680.41

CRA 10-002 Henkel 10/40% 12/31/2021 $2,503,061.00 $2,400,000.00 $103,061.00 $2,886,736.00 $2,400,000.00 $486,726.00 115% 47 42 5 47 42 5 100%
41921105009000 
41921105022000 $86,027.06 $501,754.76 $587,781.82 $18,992.69 $154,433.15 $173,425.84

CRA 11-001 Optimum Plastics     10/100% 12/31/2022 $3,000,000.00 $2,800,000.00 $200,000.00 $3,016,511.00 $2,800,000.00 $216,511.00 108% 63 55 8 70 55 15 188% 41922001017005 $12,430.32 $79,622.72 $92,053.04 $12,430.32 $56,319.72 $68,750.04

CRA 15-001

Engineered Material 
Systems (101 
Innovation Court)

15/100%
12/31/2030 $3,400,000.00 $2,700,000.00 $700,000.00 $3,978,975.51 $2,700,000.00 $1,278,975.51 117% 46 38 8 49 38 11 107% 41922002003002 $13,823.98 $53,369.42 $67,193.40 $99,155.77 $432,157.48 $531,313.25

CRA 18-003

Engineered 
Materials Systems 
2018 Expansion

15/100%
12/31/2033 $4,100,000.00 $1,055,144.00 $700,000.00 $4,098,975.51 $1,055,144.00 $120,000.00 17% 57 11 8 51 11 2 25% 41922002003002 $13,915.86 $0.00 $13,915.86 $117,310.20 $0.00 $117,310.20

CRA 15-002
Sky Climber 
Fabricating

15/100%
12/31/2031 $1,970,000.00 $0.00 $1,970,000.00 $1,785,281.00 $0.00 $1,785,281 91% 35 0 35 23 0 23 66% 41922001006004 $8,495.00 $14,036.46 $22,531.46 $159,885.00 $178,635.30 $338,520.30

CRA 16-000
Midwest Acoust-A-
Fiber

10/100%
12/31/2026 $6,280,000.00 $5,860,000.00 $420,000.00 $6,280,000.00 $5,860,000.00 $420,000.00 100% 176 162 14 176 162 14 100% 41921006004000 $149,000.00 $173,768.06 $322,768.06 $69,794.23 $139,588.46 $209,382.69

CRA 18-001

Midwest Acoust-A-
Fiber 2018 
Expansion

10/100%
12/31/2028 $744,000.00 $420,000.00 $324,000.00 $2,466,531 $420,000.00 $2,046,531  332% 23 14 9 214 14 38 226% 41921006004000 $149,000.00 $0.00 $149,000.00 $69,794.23 $0.00 $69,794.23

CRA 16-001 Symmetry II
15/50%

12/31/2031 $1,300,000.00 $0.00 $1,300,000.00 $1,838,951.00 $0.00 $1,838,951.00 141% 28 0 28 32 0 32 114% 41922002003006 $40,362.52 $87,540.22 $127,902.74 $33,721.07 $66,996.76 $100,717.83

CRA 18-002 Cohatch
15/100%

12/31/2033 $960,000.00 $0.00 $960,000.00 $1,658,000.00 $0.00 $1,658,000.00 173% 24 0 24 42 0 42 175% 51943409027000 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

CRA 17-001

Kirby Ventures LLC 
and OAK & BRAZEN, 
LLC

15/100%
12/31/2032 $165,000.00 $0.00 $165,000.00 $464,802.68 $0.00 $464,802.68 282% 6 0 6 12 0 12 200% 51943109002000 $8,061.00 $4,195.00 $12,256.00 $2,673.56 $0.00 $2,673.56

CRA 17-003 KB42 LTD
15/50%

12/31/2031 $600,000.00 $0.00 $600,000.00 $550,000.00 $0.00 $550,000.00 92% 10 0 10 9 0 9 90% 51943108023000 $12,258.42 $5,242.38 $17,500.80 $1,944.40 $0.00 $1,944.40

Total: $41,122,940.00 $17,105,144.00 $21,672,940.00 $59,962,864.80 $17,105,144.00 $29,626,085.44 920 352 530 1240 352 628 $714,393.80 $3,579,165.21 $3,657,440.89 $702,469.22 $5,123,179.29 $6,102,843.71



Performance Based Economic Incentive Grants

Company Grant Level Anticipated 
full ROI Date

Total Payroll 
Goal

Retained 
Payroll Goal

New Payroll 
Goal

Current Total 
Payroll

Current 
Retained 
Payroll

Current New 
Payroll % Achieved FTE Goal Retained FTE 

Goal New FTE Goal Current Total 
FTE

Current 
Retained FTE

Current New 
FTE % Achieved Parcel # Income Taxes 

Paid for 2019

Total Income 
Taxes Paid to 

Date

Percent to Go 
to 

Development 
Reserve Fund

Total 
Reimbursed 

to Date

% 
Reimbursed 

to Date

PBEIG CAMS $10,000 12/31/2020 $500,000.00 $0.00 $500,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $560,331.89 112% 8 0 8 0 0 12 150% 41922002003006 $10,366.14 $10,366.14 100% $10,000.00 100%

PBEIG
ONDA USA, 
LLC $30,000 12/31/2020 $2,000,000.00 $0.00 $2,000,000.00 $410,424.65 $0.00 $410,424.65 21% 50 0 50 0 0 9 18% 41921104008000 $7,592.86 $0.00 1.00% $6,700.56 22%

Total: $500,000.00 $0.00 $500,000.00 $410,424.65 $0.00 $0.00 8 0 8 0 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 $16,700.56



2020 Tax Incentive Review Council
Tax Year 2019

City of delaware tif zones

Area Total Amount Disbursed Amount to City Expires Notes

Airport #527- Jet Stream, Airspace $0.00 $27,549.00 2027
Improvement of intersection, utilities, 

ramps near airport
#565- Braumiller Subdivision $111,971.69 $337,122.00 2036 Glenn Parkway addition
#562- Cheshire North $122,613.42 $341,048.00 2036 Glenn Parkway addition
#563- Cheshire South $7,897.63 $32,524.00 2036 Glenn Parkway addition
#564- Cheshire West $22,129.26 $133,390.00 2036 Glenn Parkway addition
#566- Evans Residential $0.00 $2,201.00 2036 Glenn Parkway addition

#776- Southeast Commercial $0.00 $0.00 2037
For road improvments surrounding Ohio 

Health Blvd.

#945- Skyclimber & V&P Hydraulics $48,300.00 $48,300.00 2037
Payment of costs for acquring V&P and 

Skyclimber parcels
#1088- Zaremba- Mill Run $151,840.00 $151,840.00 2039 Paid to developer for Glenn Parkway
Buehler's $0.00 $0.00 2048 Central Ave. Turn Lane Improvements

Total $464,752.00 $1,073,974.00



2018 Residential CRA Status Report
Tax Year 2018

Name/Property Identification Date Project 
Certified

Percent of 
Exemption

Term of 
Exemption Total Project Investment

Total Real Property 
Investment Subject to 

Exemption

Date of Most 
Recent Council 

Review
Taxes Foregone

2014-06 100% 7 yrs $87,036.54 $87,036.54 2/21/2019 Active/Paid  $                            1,418.11 
Dennis Ensign
5 Stilson Street 8/28/2014
41912202005000
1 family new construction

2014-05 100% 7 yrs $91,434.46 $91,434.46 2/21/2019 Active/Paid 2,421.06$                              

Christopher Shelly
56 Kurrley Street 9/10/2014
51944307007000
1 family new construction

2014-04 100% 7 yrs 137,000.00 137,000.00 2/21/2019 Active/Paid 2,589.31$                              

David O Summers
126 Wilder Street 5/9/2014
5194427005000
1 family new construction

2014-03 100% 7 yrs 50,000.00 50,000.00 2/21/2019 Active/Paid 1,184.78$                              

James P. Manos
9B N. Sandusky Street 4/30/2014
519-432-25-029-000
Remodel 2nd floor to residential

2014-01 100% 7 yrs 111,112.80 111,112.80 2/21/2019 Active/Paid 2,091.97$                              

Kathleen G. Crawford
47 High Street 1/27/2014
51943323006000
1 family new construction

2013-01 100% 7 yrs 102,751.49 102,751.49 2/21/2019 Active/Paid 2,313.99$                              

Raul and Caolina Olvera
57 Stilson Street 6/24/2013
41912202013000
1 family new construction

2013-02 100% 7 yrs 160,000 (80,000 per unit) 160,000 2/21/2019 Active/Paid 88,353.19$                           

Delaware Place Senior Apartments, LLC
351 South Sandusky Street, Units A & B 8/2/2013
41912102034000
1 family new construction 

2013-03 100% 7 yrs 160,000 (80,000 per unit) 160,000 2/21/2019 Active/Paid combined
Delaware Place Senior Apartments, LLC
351 South Sandusky Street, Units C & D 8/2/2013
41912102034000
1 family new construction

2013-04 100% 7 yrs 160,000 (80,000 per unit) 160,000 2/21/2019 Active/Paid combined
Delaware Place Senior Apartments, LLC
351 South Sandusky Street, Units E & F 8/2/2013
41912102034000
1 family new construction

2013-05 100% 7 yrs 160,000 (80,000 per unit) 160,000 2/21/2019 Active/Paid combined
Delaware Place Senior Apartments, LLC
351 South Sandusky Street, Units G & H 8/2/2013
41912102034000
1 family new construction 

2013-06 100% 7 yrs 160,000 (80,000 per unit) 160,000 2/21/2019 Active/Paid combined
Delaware Place Senior Apartments, LLC
351 South Sandusky Street, Units I & J 8/2/2013
41912102034000
1 family new construction 

2013-07 100% 7 yrs 160,000 (80,000 per unit) 160,000 2/21/2019 Active/Paid combined
Delaware Place Senior Apartments, LLC
351 South Sandusky Street Unit K & L 8/2/2013
41912102034000
1 family new construction 

2013-08 100% 7 yrs 160,000 (80,000 per unit) 160,000 2/21/2019 Active/Paid combined
Delaware Place Senior Apartments, LLC
351 South Sandusky Street Unit M & N 8/2/2013
41912102034000
1 family new construction 

2013-09 100% 7 yrs 113,580.12 113,580.12 2/21/2019 Active/Paid 2,569.64$                              

Erica McCuen
85 Chamberlain Street 11/7/2013
51944208010000
1 family new construction

2012-04 100% 7 yrs 99,596.63 $99,596.63 2/21/2019 Active/Paid 2,434.66$                              

Steffan Gregory A & Karen M (formerly under KATHRYN C. RICHLEY)
81 Chamberlain Street 12/4/2012
51944208009000
1  family new construction 

2012-03 100% 7 yrs 94,052.07 94,052.07 2/21/2019 Active/Paid 1,905.38$                              

WALTER & TERRESA JONES, JR.
24 Eaton Street 6/28/2012
51943311023000
1 family new construction 

2012-02 100% 7 yrs $97,729.26 $97,729.26 2/21/2019 Active/Paid 2,038.67$                              

FATMATA O'CONNER

Current Status



135 S Liberty Street 5/14/2012
51943310011000
Residential new construction

2012-01 3/23/2012 100% 7 yrs $97,411 $97,411 2/21/2019 Active/Paid 1,833.28$                              

JEFFERY & TAMMY SCOTT
91Wilder Street
51944204007000
Residential new construction
2015-05 12/21/2015 100% 7 yrs $107,161 $107,161 2/21/2019 Active/Paid 2,230.96$                              

Jamison Bryant
51 Toledo Street
51934403002000
2015-04 9/30/2015 100% 7 yrs $106,762 $106,762 2/21/2019 Active/Paid 1,866.05$                              

Kiana Jones
167 Park Avenue
51943311006000
2015-03 6/18/2015 100% 7 yrs $110,441 $110,441 2/21/2019 Active/Paid 2,306.99$                              
Chris and Marcia Ball as applicants, owned 
by Habitat for Humanity
93 W Harrison Street
51943320015000
2015-02 6/8/2015 100% 7 yrs $428,000 $428,000 2/21/2019 Active/Paid 10,665.92$                           

Griswold Homes
36 Griswold Street
51943210012001
2015-01 1/13/2015 100% 7 yrs $110,000 $110,000 2/21/2019 Active/Paid 1,964.38$                              

Brittany Murfield
51 Stilson Street
41912202012000
2016-01 3/10/2016 100% 7 yrs $102,187 102,187 2/21/2019 Active/Paid 2,204.74$                              

Adam Kroninger and Jessica Bittinger
55 David St. 
51943324008000
New residential structure
2016-02 11/14/2016 100% 7 yrs $93,429.57 $93,429.57 2/21/2019 Active/Paid 2,016.82$                              

Rebecca Hughes
181 S. Franklin St. 
51943316008000
New residential structure

2017-01 5/3/2017 100% 7 yrs $128,000 $128,000.00 2/21/2019 Active/Paid 2,419.21$                              

Karianne R. Wyrick

16 David St
51943312023000
New residential structure

2017-02 6/12/2017 100% 7 yrs $150,000.00+ $150,000.00+ 2/21/2019 Active/Paid 3,292.50$                              

COSG Investments LLC; Terry Whiteside
297 W. William St.
51943304012000
Remodel - Addition

2017-03 6/1/2017 100% 7 yrs $300,000 $300,000.00 2/21/2019 Active/Paid 5,670.02$                              

Jennifer S. Long; Living Trust
535 W. William St.
51934410007000
New residential structure

2017-04 11/1/2017 100% 7 yrs $150,000.00 $150,000.00 2/21/2019 Active/Paid 3,669.43$                              

Sara Hoover
252 S. Franklin St.
51943320034000
New residential structure

2018- 01 3/19/2018 100% 7 yrs $90,000 $90,000 Active/Paid $3,292.50
Rafael Rizo and Angelica Dominguez 
Morales

242 London Rd.
51943324020000
New residential structure

2019- 01 1/10/2019 100% 7 yrs $100,404 $100,404 Active/Paid $2,456.17
Leslie D. Joiner

14 Noble St.
51943322026000
New residential structure

2019- 02 4/24/2019 100% 7 yrs $108,289 $108,289 Active/Paid -
Sara J Sepelak

136 Fair Ave.
51944218002000
New residential structure

2019- 03 7/25/2019 100% 7 yrs $100,000 $100,000 Active/Paid -
BUCKEYE LAKE STORAGE LLC @ 2 - Jim 
Manos

7 & 9 E. William St.
51943109021000
Residential apartment remodel



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  CONSENT ITEM B DATE:  03/23/2020 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 20-27 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Bruce Pijanowski, Police Chief 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A 
MUTUAL AID AGREEMENT WITH MEMBER DEPARTMENTS. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Delaware Police Department work collaboratively with other law enforcement 
agencies in Delaware County, in both emergency and non-emergency matters.  
This agreement will allow interagency cooperation during both emergency and 
other matters.  This resolution will allow the city manager to sign this agreement 
and any future agreement that is substantially the same.   
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
Authorization is required for the City Manager to sign any inter-governmental 
agreement. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
 N/A 
 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 



 
PRESENTER(S): 
Bruce Pijanowski, Chief of Police 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval 
   
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Copy of Mutual Aid Agreement 



RESOLUTION NO. 20-27 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 
ENTER INTO A MUTUAL AID AGREEMENT WITH 
MEMBER DEPARTMENTS. 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Delaware and member agencies desire to enter 

into a mutual aid agreement to obtain additional police protection for the 
citizens served by their departments; and 

 
WHEREAS, this agreement is intended to be reciprocal and will allow all 

member agencies to request assistance during situations which may arise that 
necessitates mutual aid by any member agency. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF DELAWARE, OHIO THAT: 
 

 SECTION 1.  That the City Manager is hereby authorized to enter 
into a mutual aid agreement with member agencies, and to sign any successor 
agreements that are substantially similar. 

 
SECTION 2.    This resolution shall be effective immediately upon 

its passage. 
   

 
PASSED: _________________________, 2020 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 























  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  CONSENT ITEM C DATE: 03/23/2020 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 20-28 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING:  NO 
        
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  William L. Ferrigno, P.E. 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO AN 
AGREEMENT WITH THE OHIO DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION TO 
PARTICIPATE IN THE COOPERATIVE PURCHASE OF ROAD SALT THROUGH 
THE ODOT WINTER SALT PURCHASE CONTRACT (018-21). 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The City must participate in a cooperative purchasing agreement in order to 
obtain road salt for winter snow and ice management operations within the 
city.  Participation in ODOT's winter salt contract guarantees adequate supply 
of highway road salt. Salt is available through the program from September 1, 
2020 through April 30, 2021, and at a competitive price through ODOT's 
public bid process.  Participation provides access to up to 1,000 tons of road 
salt at an estimated delivered price of $90.00 per ton.  The City's five-year 
average use of winter road salt is 2,100 tons per year, and has ranged from 
1,400 tons to 3,200 tons used in a season, though only 1028 tons of salt were 
used in this past winter season.  Availability of additional road salt outside of 
participation in the ODOT program remains limited.    
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
Resolution and signed agreement required by ODOT to participate in program 
 
 



 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
None 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
Anticipate balance of funding available in the 2020 appropriations ordinance 
will be sufficient to cover final cost of purchasing.   
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
This is the sixth year the City has participated in ODOT’s winter salt program. 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
William L. Ferrigno, P.E., Director of Public Works/City Engineer 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval 
   
ATTACHMENT(S) 
None 



RESOLUTION NO. 20 -28 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 
ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH THE OHIO 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION TO PARTICIPATE 
IN THE COOPERATIVE PURCHASE OF ROAD SALT 
THROUGH THE ODOT WINTER SALT PURCHASE 
CONTRACT (018-21). 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Delaware is responsible for operating and 

maintaining public highways within the corporate limits of the City; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Ohio Department of Transportation invites all local 

governments and political subdivisions to partner with ODOT for the 
cooperative purchase of road salt through Winter Contract (018-21); and 

 
 WHEREAS, being a member of the State Cooperative Purchasing 

Program, the City of Delaware is eligible to participate in the ODOT program; 
and 

WHEREAS, participation in the cooperative bidding and purchasing with 
ODOT will most likely ensure the best possible price and a reliable source of 
availability for road salt for the 2020-2021 winter seasons. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF DELAWARE, OHIO THAT: 
 
SECTION 1.  That the City Manager is hereby granted authority to 

participate in the Ohio Department of Transportation Winter (018-21) contracts 
for road salt and sign agreements as required. 

  
SECTION 2.  That the City Manager is hereby authorized to agree to and 

be bound by all terms and conditions as the Director of Transportation 
prescribes. 

 
SECTION 3.  That the City Manager is hereby authorized to agree to 

directly pay vendors, under each such contract of the Ohio Department of 
Transportation in which the City of Delaware participates, for items it receives 
pursuant to the contract. 

 
SECTION 4.  That the City of Delaware agrees to be responsible for 

resolving all claims or disputes arising out of its participation in the 
cooperative purchasing program under Section 5513.01(B) of the Ohio Revised 
Code. The City of Delaware agrees to waive any claims, actions, expenses, or 
other damages arising out of its participation in the cooperative purchasing 
program which the City of Delaware may have or claim to have against ODOT 
or its employees, unless such liability is the result of negligence on the part of 
ODOT or its employees. 
 



  
SECTION 5. That this resolution shall be in force and effect immediately 

upon its passage. 
 

 
PASSED: _________________________, 2020 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  CONSENT ITEM D DATE: 03/23/2020 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 20-29 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  ---- 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CANCELLATION OF THE APRIL CITY COUNCIL 
MEETINGS. 
 
BACKGROUND: Given the restrictions imposed to limit the spread of the 
COVID-19 virus, it is possible that there will be no items requiring Council 
action in April. This resolution allows the Mayor or Vice Mayor if the Mayor is 
unavailable, to cancel the meeting. In the event the meeting is canceled, the 
public will be provided notice using the same means the City uses to provide 
meeting agendas. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED:  
This legislation provides notice to the public of a potential deviation from the 
regular meeting schedule.  
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 



PRESENTER(S): 
Carolyn Kay Riggle, Mayor 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
 



RESOLUTION 20-29 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CANCELLATION OF 
THE APRIL CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS. 

 
 WHEREAS, City Council meets the second and fourth Monday of each 
month; and 
 
 WHEREAS, due to restrictions imposed as a result of the COVID-19 
virus, it is possible there will be no agenda items requiring a meeting in April; 
and 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Council of the City of 
Delaware, State of Ohio: 

 
SECTION 1.   The Mayor, and Vice Mayor if the Mayor is unavailable, are 

authorized to cancel either or both April City Council meetings if no items 
require Council consideration.  Cancellation notice will be provided at least 24 
hours in advance of the meeting in the same manner as is provided for meeting 
agendas.  

 
SECTION 2. That this resolution shall take effect and be in force 

immediately after its passage. 
 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2020 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 











FACT SHEET

AGENDA ITEM NO:  9 DATE: 03/23/2020 

ORDINANCE NO: 20-10  RESOLUTION NO: 

READING: SECOND PUBLIC HEARING: YES 
MARCH 23, 2020 @ 7:30 p.m. ** 

**Due to the meeting being held virtually, public comment will be received 
through email at emccloskey@delawareohio.net prior to the meeting or through 
City Facebook Messenger while the meeting is streamed live. The public will 
have the opportunity to provide a phone number to be conferenced into the 
remote meeting.  

TO: Mayor and Members of City Council  

FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 

VIA: David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 

TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION: 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A REZONING AMENDMENT FOR TERRA ALTA 
LLC.,  FOR TERRA ALTA SUBDIVISION FROM A-1 AND R-2 PMU TO A-1 AND 
R-2 PMU ON APPROXIMATELY 472.9 ACRES AND LOCATED NORTH 
OF BRAUMILLER ROAD, EAST OF POLLOCK ROAD AND WEST OF 
BERLIN STATION ROAD (NO ZONING CHANGES TO THE STOCKDALE FARMS 
PORTION OF THE DEVELOPMENT).  

BACKGROUND: 
See attached staff report. 

REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Chapter 1130 Amendments of the Codified 
Ordinances. 

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission recommended approval by a vote of 6-0 on March 4, 2020. 

mailto:emccloskey@delawareohio.net
EMcCloskey
Highlight



 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
  
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 20-10 
 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A REZONING 
AMENDMENT FOR TERRA ALTA LLC.,  FOR TERRA 
ALTA SUBDIVISION FROM A-1 AND R-2 PMU TO A-1 
AND R-2 PMU ON APPROXIMATELY 472.9 ACRES AND 
LOCATED NORTH OF BRAUMILLER ROAD, EAST OF 
POLLOCK ROAD AND WEST OF BERLIN STATION 
ROAD (NO ZONING CHANGES TO THE STOCKDALE 
FARMS PORTION OF THE DEVELOPMENT). 
 
 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting of March 4, 2020 
recommended approval of a Rezoning Amendment for Terra Alta LLC., for Terra 
Alta Subdivision from A-1 and R-2 PMU to A-1 and R-2 PMU on approximately 
472.9 acre and located north of Braumiller Road, east of Pollock Road and west of 
Berlin Station Road (No zoning changes to the Stockdale Farms portion of the 
development) (PC Case 2020-0258). 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 
Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Rezoning Amendment for Terra Alta LLC., for Terra 
Alta Subdivision from A-1 and R-2 PMU to A-1 and R-2 PMU on approximately 
472.9 acre and located north of Braumiller Road, east of Pollock Road and west of 
Berlin Station Road (No zoning changes to the Stockdale Farms portion of the 
development), is hereby confirmed, approved, and accepted with the following 
condition that: 
 
1. The Development Text, as currently proposed, is generally acceptable and any 

revisions shall require conformance to all provisions of the Development Text 
and the subsequent approved development plans and plats. 

2. Any change of use or major modification of the plan shall require conformance 
to all provisions of the Development Text. 

3. A $1,000 per dwelling unit transportation contribution fee shall be collected 
with each building permit for needed area transportation improvements. 

 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 



 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2020 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



FACT SHEET

AGENDA ITEM NO:  10 DATE: 03/23/2020 

ORDINANCE NO: 20-11  RESOLUTION NO: 

READING: SECOND PUBLIC HEARING: YES 
MARCH 23, 2020 @ 7:30 PM 

**Due to the meeting being held virtually, public comment will be received 
through email at emccloskey@delawareohio.net prior to the meeting or through 
City Facebook Messenger while the meeting is streamed live. The public will have 
the opportunity to provide a phone number to be conferenced into the remote 
meeting. 

TO: Mayor and Members of City Council  

FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 

VIA: David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 

TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION: 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR TERRA ALTA 
LLC., ALLOWING THE PLACEMENT OF A PLANNED MIXED-USE OVERLAY 
DISTRICT (PMU) FOR TERRA ALTA SUBDIVISION ON APPROXIMATELY 472.9 
ACRES ZONED A-1 AND R-2 PMU AND LOCATED NORTH OF BRAUMILLER 
ROAD, EAST OF POLLOCK ROAD AND WEST OF BERLIN STATION ROAD.  

BACKGROUND: 
See attached staff report. 

REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Section 1148 Conditional Use Regulations of the 
zoning code. 

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission recommended approval by a vote of 6-0 on March 4, 2020. 

FISCAL IMPACT(S): 

mailto:emccloskey@delawareohio.net


N/A 
  
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 20-11 
 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A CONDITIONAL USE 
PERMIT FOR TERRA ALTA LLC., ALLOWING THE 
PLACEMENT OF A PLANNED MIXED-USE OVERLAY 
DISTRICT (PMU) FOR TERRA ALTA SUBDIVISION ON 
APPROXIMATELY 472.9 ACRES ZONED A-1 AND R-2 
PMU AND LOCATED NORTH OF BRAUMILLER ROAD, 
EAST OF POLLOCK ROAD AND WEST OF BERLIN 
STATION ROAD.  
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting of March 4, 2020 
recommended approval of a Conditional Use Permit for Terra Alta LLC., allowing 
the placement of a Planned Mixed-Use Overlay District (PMU) for Terra Alta 
Subdivision on approximately 472.9 acre zoned A-1 and R-2 PMU and located 
north of Braumiller Road, east of Pollock Road and west of Berlin Station Road (PC 
Case 2020-0259). 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 
Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Conditional Use Permit for Terra Alta LLC., allowing 
the placement of a Planned Mixed-Use Overlay District (PMU) for Terra Alta 
Subdivision on approximately 472.9-acre zoned A-1 and R-2 PMU and located 
north of Braumiller Road, east of Pollock Road and west of Berlin Station Road,  
is hereby confirmed, approved, and accepted. 

 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2020 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  11    DATE: 03/23/2020 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 20-12    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: SECOND    PUBLIC HEARING:  NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING AN AMENDED PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT 
PLAN FOR TERRA ALTA LLC., FOR TERRA ALTA SUBDIVISION ON 
APPROXIMATELY 472.9 ACRES ON PROPERTY ZONED A-1 AND R-2 PMU AND 
LOCATED NORTH OF BRAUMILLER ROAD, EAST OF POLLOCK ROAD AND 
WEST OF BERLIN STATION ROAD.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached report 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Section 1129 requirements of the zoning code. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission approved this case 6-0 on March 4, 2020. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 



 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval as submitted with the documented conditions. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 20-12 
 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING AN AMENDED 
PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR TERRA ALTA 
LLC., FOR TERRA ALTA SUBDIVISION ON 
APPROXIMATELY 472.9 ACRES ON PROPERTY ZONED 
A-1 AND R-2 PMU AND LOCATED NORTH OF 
BRAUMILLER ROAD, EAST OF POLLOCK ROAD AND 
WEST OF BERLIN STATION ROAD. 
 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting of March 4, 2020 
recommended approval of an Amended Preliminary Development Plan for Terra 
Alta LLC;, for Terra Alta Subdivision on approximately 472.9 acre on property  
zoned A-1 and R-2 PMU and located north of Braumiller Road, east of Pollock 
Road and west of Berlin Station Road (PC 2020-0260).   
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 
Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Amended Preliminary Development Plan for Terra Alta 
LLC;, for Terra Alta Subdivision on approximately 472.9 acre on property  zoned 
A-1 and R-2 PMU and located north of Braumiller Road, east of Pollock Road and 
west of Berlin Station Road, is hereby confirmed, approved, and accepted with the 
following conditions that: 
 
1. The Applicant needs to obtain final engineering approvals, including any 

storm water and utility issues that need to be worked out through the 
Engineering and Utilities Departments. All comments regarding the layout 
and details of the project are preliminary and subject to modification or 
change based on the final technical review by the Engineering Department. 
In addition, County Engineer’s approval would be required for roadway and 
storm water issues that are located within their jurisdiction. 

2. All the streets shall achieve compliance with the minimum radii 
requirements or per the City Engineer. 

3. All public utilities shall be extended to stub to the adjacent property lines 
and appropriate sections within the development. 

4. The developer shall be responsible for any improvements and/or financial 
obligations of the traffic impact study per the City Engineer and/or County 
Engineer. 

5. A $1,000 per dwelling unit transportation contribution fee shall be collected 
with each building permit for needed area transportation improvements. 



6. Terra Alta Drive shall be connected to its intersection with Berlin Station 
Road no later than the 166th building permit is requested for the 
construction of a dwelling unit in Sub-Area 1, 4 and 10. 

7. An agreement between the developer and the City shall be executed to allow 
the adjacent properties to access the regional lift station per the City 
Engineer requirements. 

8. The multi-use path shown along the north-south stream corridor shall be 
improved by the developer prior to starting Section 2 and shall be 
maintained by the homeowner’s association with an easement dedicated to 
the City for public use. Every effort shall be made by the developer to 
relocate the bike path from the front of homes in Sub-Area 3 and 9. 

9. The off-site stormwater improvements shall comply with the minimum City 
and County regulations. 

10. The proposed bike paths shall be constructed during the subject section it 
is located in. 

11. The proposed bike path along Braumiller Road shall be installed per City 
requirements within an easement dedicated to the City and shall be 
maintained by the Homeowner’s Association. The bike path along 
Braumiller Road shall be constructed with the roadway improvements 
during the subject Phase it is located in.  

12. Sidewalks shall be provided on both sides of all public streets. Sidewalks 
are not required to be extended along Pollock Road due to topographic and 
area considerations that make a pedestrian connection along Pollock 
infeasible. However, at least one sidewalk shall be extended from the 
western portion of the subdivision to Pollock Road to provide a connection 
to the river parkland. The sidewalk shall be constructed during the subject 
section it is located in.  

13. Prior to or concurrent with the submittal of the Final Development Plan and 
Final Subdivision Plat for the first section (not included with this submittal), 
a Parkland and Open Space Improvement Plan must be submitted for 
review and approval detailing the improvements to be made to the parkland 
and privately maintained open spaces scattered throughout the 
neighborhood. 

14. A minimum four-foot-high mound with landscaping that is a minimum 60% 
opaque year-round and with a landscaping height of no less than 10 feet 
high shall be located adjacent to Berlin Station Road to buffer the 
residential lots per the approved development text. 

15. The lots and houses shall comply with the minimum bulk and setback 
requirements in the approved development text. 

16. The single-family houses shall comply with the minimum architectural 
standards in the approved development text and per applicable sections of 
the current zoning code. 



17. A minimum 3-6-foot-high mound with landscaping shall be located along 
Braumiller Road except adjacent to lots 88-90 in Phase 2. An easement on 
the rear of lots 88-90 shall be recorded to require the aforementioned 
mounding and landscaping. 

18. The maintenance of all mounds, landscaping and amenities in the parkland 
and open space areas shall be the responsibility of the Homeowner’s 
Association with an easement to the City dedicating them open to the 
public. In addition, all evergreen trees shall be a minimum 6-foot-high at 
installation and the deciduous trees shall be a minimum 1.75-inch caliper. 

19. Landscaping shall be installed adjacent to the proposed detention basin 
along Pollock Road. 

20. All landscape plans shall be submitted, reviewed and approved by the 
Shade Tree Commission. 

21. The 4.06-acre open space along the Olentangy River shall be dedicated to 
the City with Section 1 of the Final Subdivision Plat (former Stockdale 
Farms). 

22. For each single-family house, a $500 fee shall be paid for each single-family 
lot at time of building permit issuance to achieve compliance with Chapter 
1168 Tree Preservation Regulations. 

23. For each cluster home unit, $200 fee shall be paid for each cluster home 
unit at time of building permit issuance to achieve compliance with Chapter 
1168 Tree Preservation Regulations. 

24. The street lighting plan shall be submitted, reviewed and approved by the 
Chief Building Official achieves compliance with all zoning requirements 
prior to construction drawing approval. 

25. A comprehensive sign plan with all permanent and temporary signage 
including all public opens spaces shall be submitted reviewed and approved 
prior construction drawing approval. 

26. The proposed phasing of the development shall be reviewed by staff to 
ensure roadway connectivity for Phase 1 (former Stockdale Farms portion of 
the development). 

27. Conservation easements shall be provided over the entire length of all the 
existing streams on the site and shall be recorded with each final plat. 

28. A second permanent access point for the east side of the site to the 
subdivision along Braumiller Road shall be required on or before the 
development of the 65th lot (during Phase 2 per submitted plans former 
Stockdale Farms portion of the development) or per the City Engineer for 
safety considerations. 

29. A dense landscape buffer along the eastern portion of the proposed cluster 
homes adjacent to the large lot single family residences shall be submitted 
and approved with the Final Development Plan. 

30. A Del Co water line transverses the rear of lots 4-6 which could impact the 
building pads of the future houses and shall limit the construction of any 
accessory structures (decks, etc.) on these lots. 



31. A temporary emergency access point shall be located from Braumiller Road 
north between lots 15 and 16 to Skipton Loop. The design and access of the 
emergency access point shall achieve compliance with the fire department 
requirements. When Phase 1, 2 and 3 are completed, the aforementioned 
emergency access point can be converted to a bike path or the like to be 
determined by the Homeowners Association. 

32. In Sub-Area 9, the developer shall plant several 8-foot-high Norway spruce 
trees to form a continuous buffer along the rear of lots 323-325 to screen 
the adjacent single-family home in addition to the tree line that exists in 
this location already 

33. In Sub-Area 3, the developer shall plant several 8 foot high Norway spruce 
trees to form a continuous buffer along the rear of lots 165-172 along the 
northwestern portion of the site to screen the adjacent single family home in 
addition to the tree line that exists in this location already. 

34. The developer shall submit a revised sign plan and wayfinding plan for the 
entire development.  

 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2020 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  12    DATE: 03/23/2020 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 20-13    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: SECOND    PUBLIC HEARING:NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING AN AMENDED PRELIMINARY SUBDIVISION PLAT 
FOR TERRA ALTA LLC., FOR TERRA ALTA SUBDIVISION ON APPROXIMATELY 
472.9 ACRES ON PROPERTY ZONED A-1 AND R-2 PMU AND LOCATED NORTH 
OF BRAUMILLER ROAD, EAST OF POLLOCK ROAD AND WEST OF BERLIN 
STATION ROAD. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached report 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Section 1111 Platting requirements of the zoning 
code. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission approved this case 6-0 on March 4, 2020. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
 



PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval as submitted with the documented conditions. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 20-13 
 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING AN AMENDED 
PRELIMINARY SUBDIVISION PLAT FOR TERRA ALTA 
LLC., FOR TERRA ALTA SUBDIVISION ON 
APPROXIMATELY 472.9 ACRES ON PROPERTY ZONED 
A-1 AND R-2 PMU AND LOCATED NORTH OF 
BRAUMILLER ROAD, EAST OF POLLOCK ROAD AND 
WEST OF BERLIN STATION ROAD. 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting of March 4, 2020 
recommended approval of an Amended Preliminary Subdivision Plat for Terra Alta 
LLC;, for Terra Alta Subdivision on approximately 472.9 acre on property  zoned 
A-1 and R-2 PMU and located north of Braumiller Road, east of Pollock Road and 
west of Berlin Station Road (PC 2020-0261).   
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 
Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Amended Preliminary Subdivision Plat for Terra Alta 
LLC;, for Terra Alta Subdivision on approximately 472.9 acre on property  zoned 
A-1 and R-2 PMU and located north of Braumiller Road, east of Pollock Road and 
west of Berlin Station Road, is hereby confirmed, approved, and accepted with the 
following conditions that: 
 
1. The Applicant needs to obtain final engineering approvals, including any 

storm water and utility issues that need to be worked out through the 
Engineering and Utilities Departments. All comments regarding the layout 
and details of the project are preliminary and subject to modification or 
change based on the final technical review by the Engineering Department. 
In addition, County Engineer’s approval would be required for roadway and 
storm water issues that are located within their jurisdiction. 

2. All the streets shall achieve compliance with the minimum radii 
requirements or per the City Engineer. 

3. All public utilities shall be extended to stub to the adjacent property lines 
and appropriate sections within the development. 

4. The developer shall be responsible for any improvements and/or financial 
obligations of the traffic impact study per the City Engineer and/or County 
Engineer. 

5. A $1,000 per dwelling unit transportation contribution fee shall be collected 
with each building permit for needed area transportation improvements. 

6. Terra Alta Drive shall be connected to its intersection with Berlin Station 
Road no later than the 166th building permit is requested for the 
construction of a dwelling unit in Sub-Area 1, 4 and 10. 



7. An agreement between the developer and the City shall be executed to allow 
the adjacent properties to access the regional lift station per the City 
Engineer requirements. 

8. The multi-use path shown along the north-south stream corridor shall be 
improved by the developer prior to starting Section 2 and shall be 
maintained by the homeowner’s association with an easement dedicated to 
the City for public use. Every effort shall be made by the developer to 
relocate the bike path from the front of homes in Sub-Area 3 and 9. 

9. The off-site stormwater improvements shall comply with the minimum City 
and County regulations. 

10. The proposed bike paths shall be constructed during the subject section it 
is located in. 

11. The proposed bike path along Braumiller Road shall be installed per City 
requirements within an easement dedicated to the City and shall be 
maintained by the Homeowner’s Association. The bike path along 
Braumiller Road shall be constructed with the roadway improvements 
during the subject Phase it is located in.  

12. Sidewalks shall be provided on both sides of all public streets. Sidewalks 
are not required to be extended along Pollock Road due to topographic and 
area considerations that make a pedestrian connection along Pollock 
infeasible. However, at least one sidewalk shall be extended from the 
western portion of the subdivision to Pollock Road to provide a connection 
to the river parkland. The sidewalk shall be constructed during the subject 
section it is located in.  

13. Prior to or concurrent with the submittal of the Final Development Plan and 
Final Subdivision Plat for the first section (not included with this submittal), 
a Parkland and Open Space Improvement Plan must be submitted for 
review and approval detailing the improvements to be made to the parkland 
and privately maintained open spaces scattered throughout the 
neighborhood. 

14. A minimum four-foot-high mound with landscaping that is a minimum 60% 
opaque year round and with a landscaping height of no less than 10 feet 
high shall be located adjacent to Berlin Station Road to buffer the 
residential lots per the approved development text. 

15. The lots and houses shall comply with the minimum bulk and setback 
requirements in the approved development text. 

16. The single-family houses shall comply with the minimum architectural 
standards in the approved development text and per applicable sections of 
the current zoning code. 

17. A minimum 3-6-foot-high mound with landscaping shall be located along 
Braumiller Road except adjacent to lots 88-90 in Phase 2. An easement on 
the rear of lots 88-90 shall be recorded to require the aforementioned 
mounding and landscaping. 



18. The maintenance of all mounds, landscaping and amenities in the parkland 
and open space areas shall be the responsibility of the Homeowner’s 
Association with an easement to the City dedicating them open to the 
public. In addition, all evergreen trees shall be a minimum 6-foot-high at 
installation and the deciduous trees shall be a minimum 1.75-inch caliper. 

19. Landscaping shall be installed adjacent to the proposed detention basin 
along Pollock Road. 

20. All landscape plans shall be submitted, reviewed and approved by the 
Shade Tree Commission. 

21. The 4.06-acre open space along the Olentangy River shall be dedicated to 
the City with Section 1of the Final Subdivision Plat (former Stockdale 
Farms). 

22. For each single-family house, a $500 fee shall be paid for each single-family 
lot at time of building permit issuance to achieve compliance with Chapter 
1168 Tree Preservation Regulations. 

23. For each cluster home unit, $200 fee shall be paid for each cluster home 
unit at time of building permit issuance to achieve compliance with Chapter 
1168 Tree Preservation Regulations. 

24. The street lighting plan shall be submitted, reviewed and approved by the 
Chief Building Official achieves compliance with all zoning requirements 
prior to construction drawing approval. 

25. A comprehensive sign plan with all permanent and temporary signage 
including all public opens spaces shall be submitted reviewed and approved 
prior construction drawing approval. 

26. The proposed phasing of the development shall be reviewed by staff to 
ensure roadway connectivity for Phase 1 (former Stockdale Farms portion of 
the development). 

27. Conservation easements shall be provided over the entire length of all the 
existing streams on the site and shall be recorded with each final plat. 

28. A second permanent access point for the east side of the site to the 
subdivision along Braumiller Road shall be required on or before the 
development of the 65th lot (during Phase 2 per submitted plans former 
Stockdale Farms portion of the development) or per the City Engineer for 
safety considerations. 

29. A dense landscape buffer along the eastern portion of the proposed cluster 
homes adjacent to the large lot single family residences shall be submitted 
and approved with the Final Development Plan. 

30. A Del Co water line transverses the rear of lots 4-6 which could impact the 
building pads of the future houses and shall limit the construction of any 
accessory structures (decks, etc.) on these lots. 

31. A temporary emergency access point shall be located from Braumiller Road 
north between lots 15 and 16 to Skipton Loop. The design and access of the 
emergency access point shall achieve compliance with the fire department 
requirements. When Phase 1, 2 and 3 are completed, the aforementioned 



emergency access point can be converted to a bike path or the like to be 
determined by the Homeowners Association. 

32. In Sub-Area 9, the developer shall plant several 8-foot-high Norway spruce 
trees to form a continuous buffer along the rear of lots 323-325 to screen 
the adjacent single-family home in addition to the tree line that exists in 
this location already 

33. In Sub-Area 3, the developer shall plant several 8 foot high Norway spruce 
trees to form a continuous buffer along the rear of lots 165-172 along the 
northwestern portion of the site to screen the adjacent single family home in 
addition to the tree line that exists in this location already. 

34. The developer shall submit a revised sign plan and wayfinding plan for the 
entire development.  

 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2020 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



































































































































































































































































































  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  13    DATE: 03/23/2020 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 20-14    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: SECOND    PUBLIC HEARING:  NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A COMBINED PRELIMINARY AND FINAL 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR SKILKEN GOLD REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT 
FOR SHEETZ LOCATED AT 700 SUNBURY ROAD ON PROPERTY ZONED B-3 
(COMMUNITY BUSINESS DISTRICT) AND B-4 (GENERAL BUSINESS DISTRICT) 
ON APPROXIMATLEY 4.6 ACRES. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached staff report. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Section 1129.05 Final Development Plan   
requirements of the zoning code. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission recommended approval by a vote of 6-0 on March 4, 2020.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
  
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
 



PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 20-14 
 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A COMBINED 
PRELIMINARY AND FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR 
SKILKEN GOLD REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT FOR 
SHEETZ LOCATED AT 700 SUNBURY ROAD ON 
PROPERTY ZONED B-3 (COMMUNITY BUSINESS 
DISTRICT) AND B-4 (GENERAL BUSINESS DISTRICT) 
ON APPROXIMATLEY 4.6 ACRES. 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting of March 4, 2020 
recommended approval of a Combined Preliminary and Final Development Plan for 
Skilken Gold Real Estate Development for Sheetz located at 700 Sunbury Road on 
property zoned B-3 (Community Business District)  and B-4 (General Business 
District) on approximately 4.6 acres (PC Case 2020-0225).  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 
Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Combined Preliminary and Final Development Plan 
for Skilken Gold Real Estate Development for Sheetz located at 700 Sunbury Road 
on property zoned B-3 (Community Business District)  and B-4 (General Business 
District) on approximately 4.6 acres, is hereby confirmed, approved, and accepted 
with the following conditions that: 
 

1. The applicant needs to obtain engineering approvals, including any 
storm water and utility issues that need to be worked out through the 
Engineering and Utilities Departments.  All comments regarding the 
layout and details of the project are preliminary and subject to 
modification or change based on the final technical review by the 
Engineering Department once a complete plan set is submitted for 
review. 

2. The developer is required to perform a Traffic Impact Study that shall 
be approved by the City Engineer with any improvements being the 
responsibility of the applicant. 

3. The applicant shall dedicate right-of-way along Sunbury Road and 
Mill Run Crossing per the Planning and Community Development 
Director. 

4. The backage road shall be designed and constructed to meet public 
road standards including a five-foot sidewalk on the north or south 
side of the road per the City Public Works Department. The backage 
road shall be constructed to the western property line of the subject 
development.  

5. Along Mill Run Crossing, the applicant shall remove the sidewalk and 



construct a 8-foot-wide asphalt bike path to connect to the existing 
bike path to the south of the existing curb cut per the adopted Bicycle 
and Pedestrian Master Plan 2027 

6. The dumpster shall be screened from public view by a wall 
constructed of brick or stone that matches the new building with 
wood doors painted or stained to match or compliment the overall 
building. 

7. The proposed development achieves compliance with Chapter 1168 
Tree Preservation Requirements. 

8. The Shade Tree Commission shall review and approve the submitted 
street tree plans.  

9. The limestone on the building, the stone canopy columns, and the 
ground sign bases shall be Delaware blue vein limestone (or cultured 
stone) or equivalent as approved by Staff.   

10. All building and fuel canopy appurtenances (coping, downspouts, 
etc.) shall be painted to match the adjacent building material color. 

11. All roof top mechanical equipment shall be completely screened from 
public view. 

12. The Applicant shall submit all building, fuel canopy, and sign 
elevations along with material and color samples for all building 
materials for staff review and approval after approval of the Final 
Development Plan and prior to any building permit issuance.  

13. On the building sign, the red sign box shall be opaque and the only 
light to shine thru would be thru the “SHEETZ” letters as approved 
by staff. 

14. A lighting plan that achieves compliance with the zoning code shall 
be submitted, reviewed and approved by the City.  All lights shall be 
fully recessed and cut off and the light poles shall be black. 

15. The two ice boxes on the front elevation shall be painted to match the 
building. 

16. No Video dispensers, ATM machines, or any other merchandise shall 
be permitted to be outside the building unless located within a 
defined designated area and buffered from Sunbury Road and Mill 
Run Crossing. 

17. The applicant shall make a shall make a payment in lieu of 7 street 
trees which totals $525 along Sunbury Road. 

18. The applicant shall plant 4 street trees along Mill Run Crossing to 
achieve compliance with the zoning code. 

19. The development shall achieve compliance with Fire Department 
requirements. 

 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 



formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2020 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



























































































  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  14    DATE: 03/23/2020 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 20-21    RESOLUTION NO:   
 
READING: SECOND    PUBLIC HEARING:  NO 
        
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA: Justin Nahvi, Finance Director  
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE SUPPLEMENTING THE 2020 APPROPRIATIONS ORDINANCE 
TO PROVIDE ADDITIONAL FUNDING FOR THE HOUSING PROGRAM INCOME 
FUND. 

BACKGROUND:   
The City of Delaware has previously participated in the HOME grant program 
that provides funding to rehab residential properties for homeowners that quality 
for the grant based on their income level.  A stipulation of these grants requires 
the homeowner to refund a portion of the grant award back to the City if the 
property is refinanced or sold to another owner.  The City recently received 
$8,150 from a homeowner that previously received a HOME grant and the funds 
were issued as the property was conveyed to a new owner.  The State of Ohio 
does not require that this repayment be transferred back to the State agency 
that administers these grants. As such, the Planning and Community 
Development Department has proposed releasing these funds to Habitat for 
Humanity of Delaware & Union Counties to assist the organization in meetings 
its objectives in the community with regards to housing.   
 
 
 
 
 



REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED:  
The enclosed ordinance has been submitted for Council consideration as there 
are no appropriations allocated in the 2020 budget within the Housing Program 
Income Fund (Fund 296) to accommodate the distribution of these monies to 
Habitat for Humanity. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION:  
Not Applicable 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S):   
This proposed distribution of the $8,150 will have no negative impact on the 
Housing Program Income Fund (Fund 296). 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
Not Applicable 
 
PRESENTER(S):  
Justin Nahvi, Finance Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
Approval 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):   
None 



ORDINANCE NO. 20-21 
 

AN ORDINANCE SUPPLEMENTING THE 2020 
APPROPRIATIONS ORDINANCE TO PROVIDE 
ADDITIONAL FUNDING FOR THE HOUSING 
PROGAM INCOME FUND. 

 
 WHEREAS the City of Delaware has historically received HOME grant 
funding that is awarded to residents for housing rehabilitation assistance based 
on eligibility requirements generally associated with household income; and   
 

WHEREAS these grant awards to homeowners include stipulations that if 
a property is refinanced or sold within a pre-defined period of time that a portion 
of the grant will need to be repaid to the City; and 

 
WHEREAS the City of Delaware recently received $8,150 from a past 

award recipient in relation to the transfer of ownership for a property; and 
 
WHEREAS these monies are not required to be released back to the State 

of Ohio and the Planning & Community Development Department has proposed 
releasing these funds to Habitat for Humanity of Delaware & Union Counties, an 
eligible grantee, in support of the organization’s mission to provide housing for 
individuals or families in need of assistance within the City of Delaware. 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 
Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 

SECTION 1: That there is hereby appropriated from the unencumbered 
balance of the Housing Program Income Fund (Fund 296) $8,150 increasing the 
following account: 

 
HOME Expenditures (296.2960.5520)   $8,150 
 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the 
law including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:  YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2020  YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK     MAYOR 
 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  15    DATE: 03/23/2020 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 20-22    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: SECOND    PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA: Justin Nahvi, Finance Director  
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE SUPPLEMENTING THE 2020 APPROPRIATIONS ORDINANCE 
TO PROVIDE ADDITIONAL FUNDING FOR THE EAST WILLIAM STREET 
PROJECT AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Public Works Department is currently administering roadway 
improvements to E William Street for which $4,250,000 in project costs were 
outlined in the 2020 Capital Improvement Plan.  Of the total project costs, the 
local funding allocation was $971,382 of which $300,000 would be financed 
through City utility funds and the balance, $671,382 would be financed by City 
capital improvement funds. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
In relation to increasing materials and labor costs, coupled with an insufficient 
budget allocation for contingency funding on the project, the Public Works 
Department has identified a need for $300,000 in supplemental appropriations 
from the Capital Improvement Fund (Fund 410) to financially sustain the 
roadway improvements.  In addition, through ongoing construction 
improvements to East William Street, the Public Works Department has also 
identified a need for $100,000 in unexpected utility related improvements 
requiring supplemental appropriations from the Storm Sewer Fund (Fund 203).  
Council may recall City Engineer and Public Works Director, Bill Ferrigno 



bringing up the possibility of this supplemental during the budget review on 
December 9, 2019. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
The unencumbered cash balance in the Storm Sewer Fund (Fund 203) is 
currently $1.5 million and this increase of $100,000 in project costs will not 
negatively impact the cash sufficiency balance for this enterprise fund.  In 
addition, there is a sufficient cash balance in the Capital Improvement Fund 
(Fund 410) to absorb the referenced project increase in the amount of 
$300,000 per this fact sheet. 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Justin Nahvi, Finance Director 
Bill Ferrigno, City Engineer & Public Works Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
None 



ORDINANCE NO. 20-22  
 

AN ORDINANCE SUPPLEMENTING THE 2020 
APPROPRIATIONS ORDINANCE TO PROVIDE 
ADDITIONAL FUNDING FOR THE EAST WILLIAM 
STREET PROJECT AND DECLARING AN 
EMERGENCY. 

 
  

WHEREAS $4,250,000 in project costs were outlined in the 2020 Capital 
Improvement Plan for improvements to East William Street; and   

 
WHEREAS of the total project costs for the roadway improvements, 

$300,000 would be drawn from City Utility funds and $671,382 from City Capital 
Improvement funds equaling a total local share of the project in the amount of 
$971,382; and   

 
WHEREAS due to increasing material and labor costs, coupled with an 

insufficient budget allocation in contingency funding for this project, the Public 
Works Department has identified the need for $300,000 in supplemental 
appropriations to be drawn from the Capital Improvement Fund (Fund 410) to 
finalize this project; and 

 
WHEREAS during the current construction progress to East William 

Street, the Public Works Department has also identified the need for an 
additional $100,000 in stormwater improvements for utility related repairs to be 
drawn from the Storm Sewer Fund (Fund 203). 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 
Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 

SECTION 1: That there is hereby appropriated from the unencumbered 
balance of the Capital Improvement Fund increasing the following account: 

 
US 36/E. William St. Corridor (410.4104.5541)   $300,000 
 
SECTION 2: That there is hereby appropriated from the unencumbered 

balance of the Storm Sewer Fund increasing the following account: 
 
US 36/E. William St. Corridor (203.0204.5541)   $100,000 
 
 
 
 
 



 
SECTION 3.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the 
law including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 

 
SECTION 4.  EMERGENCY CLAUSE.  That this ordinance is hereby 

declared to be an emergency measure necessary to provide for the public peace, 
safety, health and welfare of the City and for the further reason to provide for a 
sufficient level of appropriations to complete the roadway improvements for East 
William Street and as such will be in full force and effect immediately upon its 
passage. 

 
 

VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____ NAYS____ 
       ABSTAIN ____ 
 
VOTE ON EMERGENCY CLAUSE   YEAS____ NAYS____ 
       ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2020  YEAS____ NAYS____ 
       ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK     MAYOR 
 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  16    DATE: 03/23/2020 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 20-23    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: SECOND    PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA: Justin Nahvi, Finance Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE SUPPLEMENTING THE 2020 APPROPRIATIONS ORDINANCE 
TO PROVIDE ADDITIONAL FUNDING FOR WATER MAIN EXTENSIONS 
ASSOCIATED WITH THE GLENN PARKWAY PROJECT. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Public Works Department will be coordinating on the extension of Glenn 
Parkway to Berlin Station in 2020 which will include the extension of water 
lines for this project.  Appropriations were separately allocated in the 2019 
fiscal year for the water line extension, however; this specific portion of the 
overall project was not executed in the prior year. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
Appropriations for water line extensions were not included in the 2020 
Approved Budget within the Water Capacity Fee Fund (Fund 536).  The 
estimated cost of extending this utility in relation to the Glenn Parkway project 
is $636,000 which would need to be appropriated in the current year to finalize 
this roadway project. 
 
 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
 
N/A 



 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
The unencumbered cash balance in the Water Capacity Fee Fund (Fund 536) is 
currently $10.3 million and this project will have no negative impact on the 
cash sufficiency for the fund. 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Justin Nahvi, Finance Director 
Bill Ferrigno, City Engineer & Public Works Director 
Blake Jordan, Public Utilities Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
None 



ORDINANCE NO. 20-23 
 

AN ORDINANCE SUPPLEMENTING THE 2020 
APPROPRIATIONS ORDINANCE TO PROVIDE 
ADDITIONAL FUNDING FOR WATER MAIN 
EXENTSIONS ASSOCIATED WITH THE GLENN 
PARKWAY PROJECT. 

 
 WHEREAS in prior fiscal years appropriations were allocated for the costs 
associated with waterline extensions attributed to the Glenn Parkway project; 
and   

 
WHEREAS this waterline project was not executed in the 2019 fiscal year 

and the subsequent appropriations were not included for the 2020 budget 
period; and   

 
WHEREAS the estimated cost for the waterline extension portion of the 

Glenn Parkway project are $636,000 to be drawn from the Water Capacity Fee 
Fund (Fund 536); and 

 
WHEREAS supplemental appropriations are needed to sustain the 

completion of this project. 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 
Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 

SECTION 1: That there is hereby appropriated from the unencumbered 
balance of the Water Capacity Fee Fund increasing the following account: 

 
Glenn Rd Waterline Extension (536.5316.5536)   $636,000 
 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the 
law including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 

 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____ NAYS____ 
       ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2020   YEAS____ NAYS____ 
       ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK     MAYOR 
 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  17     DATE: 03/23/2020 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 20-24    RESOLUTION NO:   
 
READING: SECOND    PUBLIC HEARING:  NO 
        
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA: Justin Nahvi, Finance Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE SUPPLEMENTING THE 2020 APPROPRIATIONS ORDINANCE 
TO PROVIDE ADDITIONAL FUNDING FOR PARKLAND AND TRAILWAY 
DEVELOPMENT IMPROVEMENTS. 

BACKGROUND:   
The 2019 Capital Improvement Plan included planned funding allocation for the 
Ross Street Park in the amount $175,000, while inadvertently the 2020 Capital 
Improvement Plan included planned funding allocation of only $75,000 for this 
project.  The estimates for the first phase (parking area with storm 
improvements, building removal and landscaping) came in at $175,000. 
 
The 2020 Capital Improvement Plan did not include any work related to Delaware 
Run.  The Parks Department is requesting $64,000 in funding be appropriated 
to complete the CSX review, feasibility study and design work. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED:  
Park’s CIP projects that were not approved within the 2020 Budget include 
$64,000 for design services relating to the Delaware Run future trail way 
improvements as well as $100,000 for park improvements to the Ross Street 
Park.  These two projects would be budgeted from the Park Impact Fees 
Improvement Fund (Fund 491) for a total cost of $164,000.   
 



COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION:  
Not Applicable 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S):   
The Park Impact Fees Improvement Fund (Fund 491) currently has an 
unencumbered cash balance of $2.1 million and the additional capital 
expenditures in 2020 will not have an impact on the cash sufficiency balance in 
the fund.   
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
Not Applicable 
 
PRESENTER(S):  
Justin Nahvi, Finance Director 
Ted Miller, Parks & Natural Resources Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
Approval 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):   
None 



ORDINANCE NO. 20-24  
 

AN ORDINANCE SUPPLEMENTING THE 2020 
APPROPRIATIONS ORDINANCE TO PROVIDE 
ADDITIONAL FUNDING FOR PARKLAND AND 
TRAILWAY DEVELOPMENT IMPROVEMENTS. 

  
WHEREAS, the 2019 Capital Improvement Plan included planned funding 

allocation for the Ross Street Park in the amount $175,000, while inadvertently 
the 2020 Capital Improvement Plan included planned funding allocation of only 
$75,000 for this project; and   

 
WHEREAS, the 2020 Capital Improvement Plan did not include any 

funding allocation for work related to the Delaware Run trail feasibility study, a 
cost of $64,000; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Parks Department has requested a total of $164,000 in 

supplemental appropriations from the Park Impact Fees Improvement Fund 
(Fund 491) to support these projects.   

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 
Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 

SECTION 1: That there is hereby appropriated from the unencumbered 
balance of the Park Impact Fees Improvement Fund increasing the following 
account: 

 
Professional Services                   (491.4910.5230)  $64,000 
Ross St. Parkland Improvements (491.4910.5546)  $100,000 
 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the 
law including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 

 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____ NAYS____ 
       ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2020   YEAS____ NAYS____ 
       ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK     MAYOR 



 

 

1 
 

TO:  TOM HOMAN, CITY MANAGER 
FROM:  JUSTIN NAHVI, FINANCE DIRECTOR 
SUBJECT: FEBRUARY 2020 FINANCIAL REPORT 
DATE: 3/14/2020 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The purpose of this report is to provide a brief review of the revenues and expenditures for 
the following funds: General Fund, Fire/EMS Income Tax Fund, Stormwater Fund, Water 
Fund, Wastewater Fund, and Refuse Fund.   
 
Actual revenues and expenditures are compared to the budget to assess potential 
overages/shortages in budgeted categories.  Comparisons with figures from last fiscal year 
are also included to indicate the differences by year, since budgeting techniques remain 
relatively uniform from one year to the next. 
 
Appendix A details the year-to-date activity for all of the city’s active funds.  It is important 
to note the ending balance, encumbrances, and unencumbered balance.  The unencumbered 
balance is the amount remaining in the fund if the city were to expend all the monies listed 
as encumbrances.  The ending balance is the amount of funds available to the city as of 
February 29, 2020, and ties to the amount listed in Appendix B. 
 
Appendix B is the Financial Statement for the city as of February 29, 2020.  This statement 
provides a listing of the city’s funds held at various financial institutions.  Also presented 
are the interest earned to date, weighted average interest rate, and the weighted average 
maturity (days).     
 
Appendix C is the Debt Schedule for the city through February 29, 2020.  All principal and 
interest payments that have been paid to date are included in the schedule.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

2 
 

GENERAL FUND 
 
The General Fund is the main operating fund for the city and is used to account for all 
financial transactions which are not reported in other funds.  Major sources of revenue 
include income tax and property tax. Please refer to page three for a breakdown of the 
revenues and expenditures through February 29, 2020.  
 
Revenues 
The General Fund revenues are performing as expected.  However, the following revenue 
sources require additional explanations: 

• Property Taxes – Settlement revenue is received after the 1st and 2nd half real estate 
collection periods in March and August respectively.  Updated collection 
information on this revenue source will be included in the March 2020 financial 
report. 

• Income Tax – Year-to-date receipts total $24,459,014 which is $90,126, or 3.8%, 
greater than amount the City received during the same period in the prior year.   

• Charges for Services – Chargebacks for the General Fund related services attributed 
to special revenue and enterprise funds for the 1st quarter of 2020 equaled $294,208. 
 

Expenditures 
The General Fund expenditures are performing as expected.  However, the following 
expenditures require additional explanations: 

• Transfers – Transfers to the following funds have been made: Street Maintenance 
& Repair Fund ($346,333), Capital Improvement Fund ($308,333), Recreation 
Fund ($247,946), Cemetery Fund ($25,000), Tree Fund ($7,500) and the Airport 
Fund ($5,000). 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

3 
 

2019 2020 2020 2020
ACTUAL ACTUAL TOTAL % of

YTD FEB 29 YTD FEB 29 BUDGET BUDGET
REVENUES

Property Taxes 0 0 1,548,000 0.00%
Intergovernmental Receipts 109,348 149,414 1,013,726 14.74%
Income Taxes 2,368,888 2,459,014 16,510,750 14.89%
Fines & Forfeitures 25,457 14,358 140,000 10.26%
Fees, Licenses, & Permits 304,112 437,958 2,998,000 14.61%
Miscellaneous 106,314 20,470 380,000 5.39%
Other Financing 2,250 20,013 0 0.00%
Earnings on Investments 82,301 118,624 950,000 12.49%
Charges for Services 288,698 294,208 2,299,603 12.79%

Total Revenues 3,287,367 3,514,060 25,840,079 13.60%

EXPENDITURES
Council 28,722 29,502 187,299 15.75%
City Manager 132,328 155,602 927,910 16.77%
Admin Services 114,963 67,628 425,183 15.91%
Economic Development 62,084 44,300 528,655 8.38%
Legal Affairs 143,330 145,578 882,940 16.49%
Finance 327,669 423,523 2,353,870 17.99%
General Admin 1,063,226 1,091,158 6,508,792 16.76%
Risk Management 897 5,905 349,100 1.69%
Police 1,445,475 1,628,125 9,739,704 16.72%
Planning 196,171 222,911 1,551,146 14.37%
Engineering  281,092 271,570 2,349,511 11.56%
Building Maintenance 81,135 86,851 589,467 14.73%

Total Expenditures 3,877,090 4,172,654 26,393,576 15.81%

GENERAL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUE AND EXPENDITURES

FEBRUARY 2020



 
 

4 
 

SECURITY OF PERSONS & PROPERTY FUND 
 
The Fire/EMS Income Tax Fund is a Special Revenue Fund which means that the resources 
are restricted to only funding expenditures that support the Fire Department.  Please refer 
to page five for a breakdown of the revenues and expenditures through February 29, 2020. 
 
Revenues 
Several sources of revenue support this fund, including intergovernmental as well as 
income tax collections. 

• EMS Service Agreement - The city contracts with Delaware County to provide 
EMS services to certain unincorporated portions of the County.  To date, the City 
has received $171,931.  

o For the 2020 fiscal year, the per unit reimbursement rate will be $220 for 
EMS transport and $110 per non-transport runs. 

• Income Tax – Year-to-date receipts total $1,720,442 which is $63,057, or 3.8%, 
greater than amount the City received during the same period in the prior year.   
 

 
Expenditures 
Fire/EMIS Income Tax Fund expenditures are performing as expected through February 
29, 2020.   

  
 
 
 



 
 

5 
 

2019 2020 2020 2020
ACTUAL ACTUAL TOTAL % of

YTD FEB 29 YTD FEB 29 BUDGET BUDGET
REVENUES

Intergovernmental Receipts 3,575 174,696 752,765 23.21%
Income Taxes 1,657,385 1,720,442 11,500,000 14.96%
Miscellaneous 187 30 39,195 0.08%
Other Financing 0 1,175 0 0.00%
Transfer In 0 0 240,717 0.00%

Total Revenues 1,661,147 1,896,343 12,532,677 15.13%

EXPENDITURES
Personal Services 1,317,356 1,534,861 9,501,589 16.15%
Charges & Services 163,703 219,968 1,138,934 19.31%
Materials & Supplies 51,148 91,185 447,354 20.38%
Capital Outlay 721,120 25,747 1,463,030 1.76%
Refunds 42,660 26,746 500,000 5.35%
Transfer 0 0 848,044 0.00%
Debt 514 0 514 0.00%

Total Fire Expenditures 2,296,500 1,898,507 13,899,465 13.66%

FIRE/EMS INCOME TAX FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUE AND EXPENDITURES

FEBRUARY 2020



 
 

6 
 

STORMWATER FUND 
 
The Stormwater Fund is an Enterprise Fund that was established to account for the costs 
of repairing, replacing, and improving the city’s storm drainage system.  User fees sustain 
the expenditures of this fund.  Please refer to page thirteen for a breakdown of the revenues 
and expenditures through February 29, 2020. 
 
Revenues 
The Stormwater Fund revenues are performing as expected.  However, the following 
revenue sources require additional explanations: 

• Charges for Services – Year-to-date service charges totaled $158,393, which is 
$2,786 (1.8%) greater than this period last year.   
 

Expenditures 
The Stormwater Fund expenditures are performing as expected through February 29, 2020.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

7 
 

2019 2020 2020 2020
ACTUAL ACTUAL TOTAL % of

YTD FEB 29 YTD FEB 29 BUDGET BUDGET
REVENUES

Miscellaneous 210 718 500 143.60%
Charges for Services 155,607 158,393 900,200 17.60%

Total Revenues 155,817 159,111 900,700 17.67%

EXPENDITURES
Stormwater Operations

Personal Services 37,177 41,990 257,186 16.33%
Charges & Services 9,468 12,035 223,891 5.38%
Materials & Supplies 3,582 9,713 100,340 9.68%
Capital Outlay 8,524 0 20,000 0.00%
Refunds 7 9 2,000 0.45%

Total Ops Expenditures 58,759 63,747 603,416 10.56%

Stormwater Capital
892 129,884 1,616,338 8.04%

892 129,884 1,616,338 8.04%

Total Expenditures 59,651 193,631 2,219,754 8.72%

Total Cap Expenditures

STORMWATER FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUE AND EXPENDITURES

FEBRUARY 2020

Capital Outlay



 
 

8 
 

   
WATER FUND 
 
The Water Fund was established to account for the treatment and distribution of water to 
resident and commercial users.  This fund is also an Enterprise Fund, with user fees 
financing the expenditures.  Please refer to page eleven for a breakdown of the revenues 
and expenditures through February 29, 2020. 
 
Revenues 
The Water Fund revenues are performing as expected.  However, the following revenue 
sources require additional explanations: 

• Charges for Services – Included in this category are Services Charges & 
Collections. 

o Meter Charges – Year-to-date meter charges for water consumption totaled 
$917,397 which is $56,336 or 6.5% greater than the same period from the 
prior year.    

o Capacity Fees – Year-to-date receipts total 344,650 and these fees are 
deposited into the Water Capacity Fee Fund (Fund 536). 

 
Expenditures 
The Water Fund expenditures are performing as expected through February 29, 2020.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

9 
 

2019 2020 2020 2020
ACTUAL ACTUAL TOTAL % of

YTD FEB 29 YTD FEB 29 BUDGET BUDGET
REVENUES

Miscellaneous 3,678 4,883 25,000 19.53%
Other Financing 0 6,549 11,000 59.54%
Earnings on Investments 26,161 47,761 300,000 15.92%
Charges for Services 879,410 940,262 6,220,000 15.12%

Total Revenues 909,250 999,456 6,556,000 15.24%

EXPENDITURES
Water Administration

Personal Services 62,095 54,770 325,759 0.00%
Charges & Services 70,620 58,529 276,520 21.17%
Materials & Supplies 125 41 775 0.00%
Capital Outlay 0 0 0 0.00%
Refunds 2,265 706 27,750 2.55%
Transfers 119,308 121,667 2,659,783 4.57%

Total Admin Expenditures 254,413 235,714 3,290,587 7.16%

Water Treatment
Personal Services 140,490 154,053 930,138 16.56%
Charges & Services 139,940 174,477 812,894 21.46%
Materials & Supplies 69,401 37,186 448,903 8.28%
Capital Outlay 11,956 0 87,045 0.00%
Refunds 0 0 0 0.00%

Total Treat Expenditures 361,786 365,715 2,278,981 16.05%

Water Distribution
Personal Services 99,529 101,341 617,833 16.40%
Charges & Services 18,711 18,012 121,283 14.85%
Materials & Supplies 52,803 61,848 300,470 20.58%
Capital Outlay 3,500 0 15,000 0.00%
Refunds 0 0 0 0.00%

Total Dist Expenditures 174,543 181,201 1,054,586 17.18%

Total Expenditures 790,743 782,630 6,624,154 11.81%

WATER FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUE AND EXPENDITURES

FEBRUARY 2020



 
 

10 
 

WASTEWATER FUND 
 
The purpose of the Wastewater Fund is to provide wastewater collection and treatment 
service to resident and commercial users.  This fund is also an Enterprise Fund, with user 
fees financing the expenditures.  Please refer to page nine for a breakdown of the revenues 
and expenditures through February 29, 2020. 
 
Revenues 
The Sewer Fund revenues are performing as expected.    However, the following revenue 
sources require additional explanations: 

• Charges for Services – Included in this category are Services Charges & 
Collections. 

o Meter Charges – Year-to-date meter charges for wastewater treatment 
totaled $1,019,566 which is $9,371 or 0.9% less than the same period from 
the prior year.    
Capacity Fees – Year-to-date receipts total 328,485 and these fees are 
deposited into the Wastewater Capacity Fee Fund (Fund 546). 

Expenditures 
The Wastewater Fund expenditures are performing as expected through February 29, 2020.   



 
 

11 
 

2019 2020 2020 2020
ACTUAL ACTUAL TOTAL % of

YTD FEB 29 YTD FEB 29 BUDGET BUDGET
REVENUES

Miscellaneous 7 1,127 10,000 11.27%
Other Financing 0 7,423 0 0.00%
Earnings on Investments 23,037 45,675 275,000 16.61%
Charges for Services 1,078,196 1,146,774 7,426,500 15.44%

Total Revenues 1,101,240 1,200,999 7,711,500 15.57%

EXPENDITURES
Sewer Administration

Personal Services 33,545 46,595 323,556 0.00%
Charges & Services 38,167 18,392 247,743 7.42%
Materials & Supplies 204 0 1,000 0.00%
Capital Outlay 0 0 0 0.00%
Refunds 96 101 7,500 1.34%
Transfers 134,723 137,167 3,996,618 3.43%

Total Admin Expenditures 206,734 202,254 4,576,417 4.42%

Sewer Treatment
Personal Services 148,229 156,900 975,531 16.08%
Charges & Services 132,655 133,462 1,004,447 13.29%
Materials & Supplies 27,322 29,363 238,770 12.30%
Capital Outlay 0 0 25,000 0.00%
Refunds 0 0 0 0.00%

Total Treat Expenditures 308,207 319,725 2,243,747 14.25%

Sewer Collection
Personal Services 64,532 46,385 291,090 15.94%
Charges & Services 19,154 32,020 253,935 12.61%
Materials & Supplies 29,135 25,522 187,702 13.60%
Capital Outlay 14,300 0 16,100 0.00%
Refunds 0 0 0.00%

Total Col Expenditures 127,122 103,928 748,826 13.88%

Total Expenditures 642,062 625,906 7,568,991 8.27%

WASTEWATER FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUE AND EXPENDITURES

FEBRUARY 2020



 
 

12 
 

REFUSE FUND 
 
The Refuse Fund accounts for the costs of providing refuse services.  This fund is an 
Enterprise Fund which means that the main source of revenue is the monthly fees charged 
to residents for this service.  Please refer to page seven for a breakdown of the revenues 
and expenditures through February 29, 2020. 
 
Revenues 
The Refuse Fund revenues are performing as expected.  However, the following revenue 
sources require additional explanations: 

• Charges for Services – Year-to-date receipts total $613,736 which is $18,983 or 
3.2% more than the City received from the same period in the prior year. 

 
Expenditures 
The Refuse Fund expenditures are performing as expected through February 29, 2020.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

13 
 

 
 
 

2019 2020 2020 2020
ACTUAL ACTUAL TOTAL % of

YTD FEB 29 YTD FEB 29 BUDGET BUDGET
REVENUES

Miscellaneous -                 3,365              260,000          1.29%
Other Financing -                 -                 260,000          0.00%
Earnings on Investments 1,825              3,336              12,000            27.80%
Charges for Services 594,753 613,736 3,793,350 16.18%

Total Revenues 596,578 620,438 4,325,350 14.34%

EXPENDITURES
Refuse Administration

Personal Services 0 0 0 0.00%
Charges & Services 14,240 9,262 92,834 9.98%
Materials & Supplies 0 0 0 0.00%
Capital Outlay 12,545 5,985 9,287 64.44%
Refunds 284 47 1,000 4.69%
Transfers 60,383 61,863 371,180 16.67%

Total Admin Expenditures 87,452 77,157 474,301 16.27%

Refuse Collection
Personal Services 128,314 134,272 784,850 17.11%
Charges & Services 179,561 209,103 1,332,353 15.69%
Materials & Supplies 14,833 17,304 203,514 8.50%
Capital Outlay 0 0 731,207 0.00%
Refunds 0 0 0 0.00%

Total Collect Expenditures 322,707 360,678 3,051,924 11.82%

Refuse Recycling
Personal Services 79,711 78,856 474,996 16.60%
Charges & Services 19,079 50,445 300,209 16.80%
Materials & Supplies 7,124 4,851 86,650 5.60%
Capital Outlay 0 0 513,447 0.00%
Refunds 0 0 0 0.00%

Total Recycle Expenditures 105,915 134,152 1,375,302 9.75%

Total Expenditures 516,074 571,988 4,901,528 11.67%

REFUSE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUE AND EXPENDITURES

FEBRUARY 2020



APPENDIX A 
 

14 
 

 

BEGINNING YTD YTD ENDING UNENCUMB
Fund # FUND BALANCE REVENUES EXPEND BALANCE ENCUMB BALANCE

101 General Fund 6,801,606.03 3,514,059.75 4,172,654.96 6,143,010.82 789,309.90 5,353,700.92
200 Street MainTenance & Repair 603,206.35 710,480.82 616,837.63 696,849.54 279,956.16 416,893.38
201 State Highway Improvement 353,397.37 28,281.29 157,532.03 224,146.63 288,491.97 (64,345.34)
202 License Fee 426,903.67 72,679.82 398,354.41 101,229.08 90,690.30 10,538.78
203 Stormwater 2,113,380.23 159,111.27 193,631.06 2,078,860.44 484,169.15 1,594,691.29
210 Recreation 266,459.06 258,133.91 217,310.70 307,282.27 49,378.67 257,903.60
212 Oak Grove Cemetery 276,700.20 39,520.82 33,482.20 282,738.82 161,492.62 121,246.20
215 Tree Replacement 119,237.10 29,150.00 0.00 148,387.10 0.00 148,387.10
222 Airport 184,988.85 105,855.30 114,780.01 176,064.14 133,048.51 43,015.63
223 Hangars 180,442.96 16,912.50 10,578.39 186,777.07 0.00 186,777.07
231 Fire/EMS Income Tax 9,399,949.67 1,896,342.61 1,898,507.10 9,397,785.18 1,160,465.50 8,237,319.68
233 Rec Center Income Tax 5,065,048.57 383,285.41 7,088.64 5,441,245.34 37,543.00 5,403,702.34
235 Airport TIF 136,735.75 0.00 0.00 136,735.75 0.00 136,735.75
236 Glenn Road TIF 2,011,525.35 5,786.34 8,979.88 2,008,331.81 329,618.17 1,678,713.64
237 Sky Climber TIF 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
238 Mill Run TIF 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
240 Municipal Court 2,861,453.86 552,214.70 476,087.28 2,937,581.28 20,723.20 2,916,858.08
241 Court IDIAM 14,674.86 6,174.77 4,997.00 15,852.63 2,252.00 13,600.63
250 Drug Enforcement 51,218.50 518.70 0.00 51,737.20 0.00 51,737.20
251 Court Alcohol Treatment 592,279.16 5,063.25 0.00 597,342.41 0.00 597,342.41
252 OMVI Enforcement/Education 4,520.65 195.00 0.00 4,715.65 0.00 4,715.65
253 Police Judgement 40,138.50 0.00 17,044.00 23,094.50 607.74 22,486.76
254 Police Fed Judgement 0.00 17,044.00 1,500.00 15,544.00 2,375.00 13,169.00
255 Park Exaction Fee 184,116.07 0.00 12,516.98 171,599.09 27,483.02 144,116.07
256 Court Computer Legal Research 757,780.68 38,541.00 32,631.86 763,689.82 65,603.23 698,086.59
257 Court Special Projects 749,712.50 38,639.31 61,068.11 727,283.70 15,274.78 712,008.92
259 Court Probation Services 614,641.81 46,038.34 2,928.63 657,751.52 3,436.84 654,314.68
261 Police Disability Pension 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
262 Fire Disability Pension 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
272 Community Promotion 84,603.77 9,527.92 61,911.48 32,220.21 6,164.60 26,055.61
291 CDBG 0.00 0.00 275.00 (275.00) 3,000.00 (3,275.00)
292 Police Fed Treasury Seizures 0.00 3,530.27 0.00 3,530.27 0.00 3,530.27
295 ED Revolving Loan 240,333.27 22,960.20 10,712.80 252,580.67 1,647.20 250,933.47
296 Housing Program Income 8,150.00 0.00 0.00 8,150.00 0.00 8,150.00

YEAR TO DATE FUND REPORT
February 29, 2020



APPENDIX A 
 

15 
 

 

BEGINNING YTD YTD ENDING UNENCUMB
Fund # FUND BALANCE REVENUES EXPEND BALANCE ENCUMB BALANCE

300 General Bond Retirement 621,579.51 1,788.03 0.00 623,367.54 1,411.93 621,955.61
301 Park Improvement Bond 111,104.83 319.60 0.00 111,424.43 0.00 111,424.43
302 SE Highland Bond 0.00 138,053.32 0.00 138,053.32 0.00 138,053.32
410 Capital Improvement 4,666,224.39 1,284,314.31 2,030,077.29 3,920,461.41 4,816,177.00 (895,715.59)
415 Point Project 933,691.72 233,286.48 244,055.27 922,922.93 1,971,670.19 (1,048,747.26)
431 FAA Alloc/Improvement Grant 95,193.38 0.00 0.00 95,193.38 69,680.65 25,512.73
440 Equipment Replacement 217,510.22 416,508.00 163,709.00 470,309.22 326,517.00 143,792.22
491 Parks Impact Fee 2,067,688.56 79,507.89 0.00 2,147,196.45 30,409.50 2,116,786.95
492 Police Impact Fee 429,784.34 10,956.31 0.00 440,740.65 164.93 440,575.72
493 Fire Impact Fee 544,494.17 20,406.29 0.00 564,900.46 168.79 564,731.67
494 Municipal Impact Fee 444,342.10 23,238.19 0.00 467,580.29 7,227.12 460,353.17
496 Glenn Rd S Construction 926,595.96 112,965.49 0.00 1,039,561.45 3,429.08 1,036,132.37
498 Glenn Rd N 330,020.80 0.00 0.00 330,020.80 2,780.24 327,240.56
501 Golf Course 81,056.66 2,943.50 6,362.91 77,637.25 6,000.00 71,637.25
520 Parking Lots 52,087.14 7,939.31 9,803.71 50,222.74 12,787.93 37,434.81
530 Water 1,504,060.97 999,455.86 782,630.33 1,720,886.50 230,952.43 1,489,934.07
531 Water Construction 2,479,462.37 0.00 668,105.48 1,811,356.89 750,557.51 1,060,799.38
533 Water Reserve 2,000,000.00 0.00 0.00 2,000,000.00 0.00 2,000,000.00
536 Water Capacity Fee 10,619,956.63 344,650.00 376,422.42 10,588,184.21 167,860.94 10,420,323.27
540 Wastewater 3,724,670.38 1,200,999.30 625,906.18 4,299,763.50 424,289.35 3,875,474.15
541 Wastewater Construction 3,088,062.39 0.00 143,816.75 2,944,245.64 192,149.71 2,752,095.93
543 Wastewater Reserve 2,000,000.00 0.00 0.00 2,000,000.00 0.00 2,000,000.00
545 Water Customer Deposit 228,317.60 (851.40) 786.88 226,679.32 0.00 226,679.32
546 Wastewater Capacity Fee 6,796,915.87 328,485.00 812,195.25 6,313,205.62 1,330.00 6,311,875.62
548 SE Highland Wastewater 268,389.54 48,000.00 138,053.32 178,336.22 0.00 178,336.22
550 Refuse 1,159,867.16 620,437.69 571,987.63 1,208,317.22 735,939.11 472,378.11
601 Garage Rotary 504,994.89 199,164.00 110,093.51 594,065.38 106,271.79 487,793.59
602 IT Rotary 655,372.98 376,444.20 297,300.72 734,516.46 173,928.55 560,587.91
610 Health Insurance 522,534.62 2,452,849.84 902,606.16 2,072,778.30 6,817.52 2,065,960.78
620 Workers Compensation 2,626,777.89 9,515.16 13,580.94 2,622,712.11 24,907.00 2,597,805.11
701 Fire Donation 1,083.36 200.00 0.00 1,283.36 0.00 1,283.36
702 Parks/Rec Donation 13,214.03 6,500.00 2,615.00 17,099.03 10,000.00 7,099.03
703 Police Donation 10,836.60 0.00 2,000.00 8,836.60 0.00 8,836.60
704 Mayors Donation 898.15 100.00 0.00 998.15 0.00 998.15
705 Project Trust 1,129,526.94 67,000.00 1,750.00 1,194,776.94 13,530.00 1,181,246.94

February 29, 2020
YEAR TO DATE FUND REPORT



APPENDIX A 
 

16 
 

 

707 Unclaimed Funds 18,620.57 0.00 0.00 18,620.57 0.00 18,620.57
708 Municipal Court Unclaimed Funds 86,376.18 555.02 0.00 86,931.20 0.00 86,931.20
709 Development Reserve 1,008,885.74 0.00 0.00 1,008,885.74 0.00 1,008,885.74
710 Reserve Account 1,188,864.04 0.00 0.00 1,188,864.04 0.00 1,188,864.04
711 Berkshire JEDD 84,717.65 76,694.22 85,044.33 76,367.54 414,955.67 (338,588.13)
750 Cemetery Perpetual Care 33,839.98 97.34 0.00 33,937.32 0.00 33,937.32
801 State Highway Patrol 4,866.99 8,928.34 9,013.14 4,782.19 0.00 4,782.19
803 State Building Permit 1,296.92 1,621.05 2,119.40 798.57 0.00 798.57
804 Performance Bond 694,227.73 50,800.00 122,615.24 622,412.49 0.00 622,412.49

88,121,216.74 17,083,919.64 16,634,061.01 88,571,075.37 14,454,645.50 74,116,429.87

February 29, 2020
YEAR TO DATE FUND REPORT



APPENDIX B 
 

17 
 

Weighted YTD Weighted
Average Interest Average Ending

Interest Rate Earned Maturity (Days) Balance
Checking/Depository
Checking (Operating & Payroll)* -          4,705,032             

Total Bank Deposits -$        4,705,032$           

Investments
Star Ohio 1.77% 245,387   83,866,043           

Total Investments 245,387$ 83,866,043$          

TOTAL BANK DEPOSITS & INVESTMENTS 245,387$ 88,571,075$          

* The city participates in an Earning Credit Allow ance program.  The City maintains a minimum balance in the checking account so
that a credit is earned that then offsets the monthly service charge. 

I certify that the balances stated above are true to the best of my know ledge.

Justin Nahv i FEBRUARY 29, 2020
Finance Director Date

Tom Homan FEBRUARY 29, 2020
City Manager Date

CITY OF DELAWARE, OHIO
FINANCIAL STATEMENT

FEBRUARY 29, 2020



APPENDIX C 

18 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Outstanding
Balance Police Impact Municipal Glenn Rd. Water Water Sewer Sewer
2/29/2020 General Fire/EMS Rec Levy Impact Fee Impact Fee TIF/NCA User Fee Capacity Fee User Fee Capacity Fee

2019 GO Bonds 20,595,000$ 3,491,250$   508,750$      6,710,000$   9,885,000$   

2017 General Obligation Bonds 5,805,000$   631,877$      2,665,000$   1,957,654$   550,469$      

2015 General Obligation Bonds 5,205,000$   435,000$      2,345,000$   2,425,000$   

2013 General Obligation Bonds 5,190,000$   1,855,000$   587,500$      1,282,500$   1,465,000$   

2012 General Obligation Bonds 1,890,000$   847,722$      172,278$      870,000$      

OWDA Water Projects 29,449,933$ 18,855,372$ 10,594,561$ 

OWDA Sewer Projects 11,327,491$ 976,430$      10,351,061$ 

2010 Recreation Levy Bonds 15,260,000$ 15,260,000$ 

  Total Long Term Debt 94,722,424$ 4,970,849$   5,127,278$   17,605,000$ 587,500$      1,791,250$   10,600,000$ 18,855,372$ 12,552,215$ 976,430$      21,656,530$ 

Fund Balance Reserves 2/29  5,353,701$   8,237,320$   5,403,702$   440,576$      460,353$      1,678,714$   4,550,733$   10,420,323$ 8,627,570$   6,311,876$   

Annual Debt Service 767,721$      702,262$      1,521,132$   136,700$      353,500$      999,126$      1,285,727$   964,722$      152,695$      3,003,987$   

2020 Revenue 25,840,079$ 12,532,677$ 2,521,500$   80,000$        222,500$      3,051,300$   6,205,500$   4,050,000$   7,430,300$   4,080,000$   

CITY OF DELAWARE
DEBT SCHEDULE
FEBRUARY 2020



City Manager Report 20200323 
 

 
TO:  Mayor Riggle and Members of Council 
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Miscellaneous Matters 
 
DATE: March 19, 2020 
 
 
1. Calendar 
 See Attached 
 
2. Per Section 73 Of The City Charter The City Manager Is To Report 

Contract Agreements 
 See Attached 
 
3. Manager Meetings/Events 
 March 4-5 
  OCMA Winter Conference  
 March 9 
  Rotary 
  City Council Meeting 
 March 11 
  Delaware City EMS Contract Meeting 
 March 12 
  MORPC  
  COVID-19 Task Force Meeting 
  Delaware Health Advisory Meeting 
 March 13 
  COVID-19 Task Force Meeting 
 March 16 
  COVID-19 Task Force Meeting 
 March 17 
  Strand Board Meeting Remote 
  COVID-19 Task Force Meeting 
 March 18 
  City Council Special Meeting Remote 
  COVID-19 Task Force Meeting 
  Central Ohio Mayors and Managers Association Remote 
 March 19 
  COVID-19 Task Force Meeting 
  
   
 
  
  
  
  



APRIL  
 

 

  2020 
Monthly Meeting Schedule  

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 
   1 2 3 4 

   Civil Service-Canceled 
Planning – Canceled 

   

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 
   BZA – Canceled    

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 
 City Council – Canceled 

** 
Sister City – Canceled  Airport Commission-

Canceled 
 Council Bus Tour- 

Canceled 

19 20 21 22 23 24 25 
 Parking and Safety - 

Canceled 
 HPC - Canceled    

26 27 28 29 30   
 City Council – Canceled 

**  
Shade Tree Commission  
Canceled 

    

       
       

Council meetings will be canceled if there is no agenda items.   



CONTRACT APPROVAL – March 23, 2020 
 

VENDOR 
 

EXPLANATION OF AGREEMENT 
2020 

AMOUNT 
 

DEPARTMENT 
OWU OWU Summer Camp Agreement for 

Delaware Police Dept Bike Patrol 
1912.00 Police 

 


	01 20200323 council agenda
	02 council minutes
	03 fact sheet res 20-26,
	04 res 20-26, TIRC 2020
	05 2020_TIRC_Meeting _Minutes
	06 TIRCReport_2020_1_03_20_forCouncil
	CRA-EZ
	PBEIG
	TIF
	Residential CRA

	07 fact sheet res 20-27,  Police Mutual Aid Agreement
	08 res 20- 27, Police Mutual Aid Agreement
	09 Xerox Scan_03162020160321
	10 Fact Sheet res 20-28, ODOT Salt Contract 2020-2021
	11 res 20-28, ODOT Salt Contracts 2020
	12 fact sheet res 20-29, reschedule council mtg
	13 res 20-29, cancel council mtg
	RESOLUTION 20-29

	15 Meijer Gas Station Liquor
	16 Meijer Liquor Permit
	17 factsheet ord 20-10, 2020-0258 Terra Alata REZ
	18 ord 20-10, 2020-0258 Terra Alta REZ Ordinance
	ORDINANCE NO. 20-10
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	19 factsheet ord 20-11, 2020-0259 Terra Alta  CUP
	20 ord 20-11, 2020-0259 Terra Alta CUP
	ORDINANCE NO. 20-11
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	21 fact sheet ord 20-12, 2020-0260 Terr Alta APDP
	22 ord 20-12 , 2020-0260 Terra Alta  APDP
	ORDINANCE NO. 20-12
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	23 factsheet ord 20-13, 2020-0261 Terr Alta APSP
	24 ord 20-13, 2020-0261 Terra Alta  APSP
	ORDINANCE NO. 20-13
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	25 terra alta staff amended report
	26 fact sheet ord 20-14, cpfdp sheetz
	27 ord 20-14, 2020-0225 Sheetz  CPFDP
	ORDINANCE NO. 20-14
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	28 sheetz amended staff report
	29 Fact Sheet Ord 20-21, HOME Grant
	30 Ord 20-21, HOME Grant Supplemental Appropriations
	31 Fact Sheet Ord 20-22, E William Supplemental Appropriations
	32 Ord 20-22,  E William Supplemental Appropriations
	33 Fact Sheet Ord 20-23, Glenn Parkway Supplemental Appropriations
	34 Ord 20-23, Glenn Parkway Supplemental Appropriations
	35 Fact Sheet Ord 20-24 Parks Supplemental Appropriations
	36 Ord 20-24 Parks Supplemental Appropriations
	37 FEBRUARY 2020 FINANCIAL REPORT
	38 city managers report 20200323
	39 April
	40contract approval 20200323
	CONTRACT APPROVAL – March 23, 2020
	2020
	DEPARTMENT
	AMOUNT
	VENDOR
	EXPLANATION OF AGREEMENT

	1912.00
	OWU
	OWU Summer Camp Agreement for Delaware Police Dept Bike Patrol



